

# ULTIMATE Spells II

# CREDITS .....

Authors: Jason Nelson

Artist: Christopher Kimball, Frank Hessefort, Jason Juta, Mike Lowe, Tanyaporn Sangsnit, Hugo Solis, Steve Wood

# Design and Layout: Rick Hershey

**Legendary Games Team Members:** Clinton J. Boomer, Benjamin Bruck, Matthew Goodall, Jim Groves, Tim Hitchcock, Jonathan H. Keith, Nicolas Logue, Jason Nelson, Richard Pett, Tom Phillips, Alistair Rigg, Tork Shaw, Mike Shel, Mike Welham, Neil Spicer, Todd Stewart, Russ Taylor, Greg A. Vaughan, and Clark Peterson

Publisher: Jason Nelson

**Executive Partner: Neil Spicer** 

**Business Director:** Rachel Ventura

**Special Thanks:** Erik Mona, Lisa Stevens, Jason Bulmahn, and the Paizo staff for their excellent *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures* hardback.

# Special Thanks.....

Erik Mona, Lisa Stevens, James Jacobs and the Paizo staff for all of the magic. We also would like to thank the fans and supporters of Legendary Games that have made our company a success. We also thank our families and the spouses and children that are so patient and supportive to each of us in the time we take to create the very best for all of you.

Mythic Magic: Ultimate Spells II © 2014, Legendary Games; Authors Jason Nelson.

ISBN 978-0692310458

2

First printing August 2014 Printed in USA.



Legendary Games 3734 SW 99th St. Seattle, WA 98126-4026

makeyourgamelegendary.com

# LEGAL .....

Compatibility with the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game requires the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game from Paizo Publishing, LLC. See <a href="http://paizo.com/pathfinderRPG">http://paizo.com/pathfinderRPG</a> for more information on the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game. Paizo Publishing, LLC does not guarantee compatibility, and does not endorse this product.

Pathfinder is a registered trademark of Paizo Publishing, LLC, and the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game and the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Compatibility License. See <a href="http://paizo.com/pathfinderRPG/compatibility">http://paizo.com/pathfinderRPG/compatibility</a> Log are trademarks of Paizo Publishing, LLC, and are used under the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Compatibility License. See <a href="http://paizo.com/pathfinderRPG/compatibility">http://paizo.com/pathfinderRPG/compatibility</a> Log are trademarks of Paizo Publishing, LLC, and are used under the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Compatibility License. See <a href="http://paizo.com/pathfinderRPG/compatibility">http://paizo.com/pathfinderRPG/compatibility</a> for more information on the compatibility license.

**Open Content:** Subject to designation as Product Identity (see below), the only portion of this Legendary Games product designated as Open Game Content is the rules content (creature stat blocks and names of skills, etc., taken from the Pathfinder Reference Document) as defined in the Open Game License version 1.0a Section 1(d). The front and back cover, back matter, introduction and Credits page, as well all other parts of this product including all text not specifically designated as Open Game Content is not Open Game Content. No portion of this work other than the material designated as Open Game Content may be reproduced in any form without written permission.

Product Identity: The following items are hereby identified as Product Identity, as defined in the Open Game License 1.0a, Section 1(e), and are not Open Content: Legendary Games, the Legendary Games Logo, Ultimate Plug-Ins, **Mythic Magic: Ultimate Spells II**, as well as all trademarks, registered trademarks, proper names (including the names of each character, location, item or monster unique to this product), dialogue, plots, storylines, locations, characters, artworks, and trade dress, but excluding any content that is Product Identity of Paizo Publishing, Inc. (Elements that have previously been designated as Open Game Content are not included in this declaration.)

Reference in non-Open Game Content (thus not covered by the Open Game License) in this work to content owned by others is not a challenge to their ownership and is used under Fair Use.

OPEN GAME LICENSE Version 1.0a. The following text is the property of Wizards of the Coast, Inc. and is Copyright 2000 Wizards of the Coast, Inc ("Wizards"). All Rights Reserved.

1. Definitions: (a) "Contributors" means the copyright and/or trademark owners who have contributed Open Game Content; (b) "Derivative Material" means copyright-ed material including derivative works and translations (including into other computer languages), portation, modification, correction, addition, extension, upgrade improvement, compilation, abridgment or other form in which an existing work may be recast, transformed or adapted; (c) "Distribute" means to reproduce, license, rent, lease, sell, broadcast, publicly display, transmit or otherwise distribute; (d) "Open Game Content" means the game mechanic and includes the methods, procedures, processes and routines to the extent such content does not embody the Product Identity and is an enhancement over the prior art and any additional content clearly identified as Open Game Content by the Contributor, and means any work covered by this License, including translations and derivative works under copyright law, but specifically excludes Product Identity. (e) "Product Identity" means product and product line names, logos and identifying marks including trade dress; artifacts, creatures, characters, stories, storylines, plots, thematic elements, dialogue, incidents, language, artwork, sym-bols, designs, depictions, likenesses, formats, poses, concepts, themes and graphic, photographic and other visual or audio representations; names and descrip-tions of chemeters embly candentment presentations. tions of characters, spells, enchantments, personalities, teams, personas, likenesses and special abilities; places, locations, environments, creatures, equipment, magical or supernatural abilities or effects, logos, symbols, or graphic designs; and any other trademark or registered trademark clearly identified as Product identity by the owner of the Product Identity, and which specifically excludes the Open Game Content; (f) "Trademark" means the logos, names, mark, sign, motto, designs that are used by a Contributor to identify itself or its products or the as-sociated products contributed to the Open Game License by the Contributor (g) "Use", "Used" or "Using" means to use, Distribute, copy, edit, format, modify, translate and otherwise create Derivative Material of Open Game Content. (h) "You" or "Your" means the licensee in terms of this agreement.

2. The License: This License applies to any Open Game Content that contains a notice indicating that the Open Game Content may only be Used under and in terms of this License. You must affix such a notice to any Open Game Content that you Use. No terms may be added to or subtracted from this License except as described by the License itself. No other terms or conditions may be applied to any Open Game Content distributed using this License.

3. Offer and Acceptance: By Using the Open Game Content You indicate Your acceptance of the terms of this License.

4. Grant and Consideration: In consideration for agreeing to use this License, the Contributors grant You a perpetual, worldwide, royalty-free, non-exclusive license with the exact terms of this License to Use, the Open Game Content.

5. Representation of Authority to Contribute: If You are contributing original material as Open Game Content, You represent that Your Contributions are Your original creation and/or You have sufficient rights to grant the rights conveyed by this License.

6. Notice of License Copyright: You must update the COPY-

RIGHT NOTICE portion of this License to include the exact text of the COPYRIGHT NOTICE of any Open Game Content You are copying, modifying or distributing, and You must add the title, the copyright date, and the copyright holder's name to the COPYRIGHT NOTICE of any original Open Game Content you Distribute.

7. Use of Product Identity: You agree not to Use any Product Identity, including as an indication as to compatibility, except as expressly licensed in another, independent Agreement with the owner of each element of that Product Identity. You agree not to indicate compatibility or co-adaptability with any Trademark or Registered Trademark in conjunction with a work containing Open Game Content except as expressly licensed in another, independent Agreement with the owner of such Trademark or Registered Trademark. The use of any Product Identity in Open Game Content does not constitute a challenge to the ownership of that Product Identity. He owner of any Product Identity used in Open Game Content shall retain all rights, title and interest in and to that Product Identity.

8. Identification: If you distribute Open Game Content You must clearly indicate which portions of the work that you are distributing are Open Game Content.

9. Updating the License: Wizards or its designated Agents may publish updated versions of this License. You may use any authorized version of this License to copy, modify and distribute any Open Game Content originally distributed under any version of this License.

10. Copy of this License: You MUST include a copy of this License with every copy of the Open Game Content You distribute.

11. Use of Contributor Credits: You may not market or advertise the Open Game Content using the name of any Contributor unless You have written permission from the Contributor to do so.

12. Inability to Comply: If it is impossible for You to comply with any of the terms of this License with respect to some or all of the Open Game Content due to statute, judicial order, or governmental regulation then You may not Use any Open Game Material so affected.

13. Termination: This License will terminate automatically if You fail to comply with all terms herein and fail to cure such breach within 30 days of becoming aware of the breach. All sublicenses shall survive the termination of this License.

14. Reformation: If any provision of this License is held to be unenforceable, such provision shall be reformed only to the extent necessary to make it enforceable.

15. COPYRIGHT NOTICE

Open Game License v 1.0a © 2000, Wizards of the Coast, Inc.

Mythic Magic: Ultimate Spells II © 2014, Legendary Games; Author Jason Nelson.

System Reference Document. © 2000, Wizards of the Coast, Inc.; Authors Jonathan Tweet, Monte Cook, Skip Williams, based on material by E. Gary Gygax and Dave Arneson. The Hypertext d20 SRD. © 2004, Jans W Carton.

Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Advanced Player's Guide. © 2010, Paizo Publishing, LLC; Author: Jason Bulmahn, Jame Jacobs, Steve Kenson, Hal Maclean, Rob McCreary, Erik Mona, Jason Nelson, Stephen Radney-MacFarland, Sean K Reynolds, F. Wesley Schneider, James L. Sutter, Owen Stephens, and Russ Taylor.

3

Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Bestiary. © 2009, Paizo Publishing, LLC; Author: Jason Bulmahn, Brian Cortijo, Adam Daigle, Mike Ferguson, Joshua J. Frost, James Jacobs, Rob McCreary, Frik Mona, Sean K Reynolds, F. Wesley Schneider, Lisa Stevens, James L. Sutter, and Greg A. Vaughan.

Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Bestiary 2. © 2010, Paizo Publishing, LLC; Author: Wolfgang Baur, Jason Bulmahn, Adam Daigle, Graeme Davis, Crystal Frasier, Joshua J. Frost, Tim Hitchcock, Brandon Hodge, James Jacobs, Steve Kenson, Hal Maclean, Martin Mason, Rob McCreary, Erik Mona, Jason Nelson, Patrick Renie, Sean K Reynolds, F. Wesley Schneider, Owen K.C. Stephens, James L. Sutter, Russ Taylor, and Greg A. Vaughan.

Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Bestiary 3. © 2011, Paizo Publishing, LLC; Author: Jason Bulmahn, Jesse Benner, Adam Daigle, James Jacobs, Michael Kenway, Rob McCreary, Patrick Renie, Chris Sims, F. Wesley Schneider, James L. Sutter, and Russ Taylor.

Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Bestiary 4. © 2013, Paizo Publishing, LLC; Authors: Dennis Baker, Jesse Benner, Savannah Broadway, Ross Byers, Adam Daigle, Tim Hitchcock, Tracy Hurley, James Jacobs, Matt James, Rob McCreary, Jason Nelson, Tom Phillips, Stephen Radney-MacFarland, Sean K Reynolds, F. Wesley Schneider, Tork Shaw, and Russ Taylor.

Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Core Rulebook. © 2009, Paizo Publishing, LLC; Author: Jason Bulmahn, based on material by Jonathan Tweet, Monte Cook, and Škip Williams.

Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Combat © 2011, Paizo Publishing, LLC; Lead Designer: Jason Bulmahn; Designers: Dennis Baker, Jesse Benner, Benjamin Bruck, Brian J. Cortijo, Jim Groves, Tim Hitchcock, Richard A. Hunt, Colin McComb, Jason Nelson, Tom Phillips, Patrick Renie, Sean K Reynolds, and Russ Taylor.

Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic © 2011, Paizo Publishing, LLC; Lead Designer: Jason Bulmahn; Designers: Tim Hitchcock, Colin McComb, Rob McCreary, Jason Nelson, Stephen Radney-MacFarland, Sean K Reynolds, Owen K.C. Stephens, and Russ Taylor.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

A CONTRACT OF
Spell Lists By Class
Acidic Spray11
Acute Senses11
Age Resistance (All)
Agonize
Allegro11
Animate Dead, Lesser12
Anthropomorphic Animal12
Anticipate Peril
Arboreal Hammer <sup>a</sup>
Arcana Theft12
Archon's Aura12
Arrow Of Law 12
Ash Storm 12
Astral Projection, Lesser
Atavism 13
Atavism, Mass
Aura Of Doom
Badger's Ferocity
Bestow Grace Of The Champion13
Blade Of Bright Victory
Blade Of Dark Triumph13
Blessing Of The Mole
Blood Crow Strike14
Blood Mist14
Blood Transcription14
Boiling Blood <sup>a</sup> ·······14
Bungle 14
Burrow <sup>a</sup> ····································
Burst Of Nettles
Cackling Skull14
Call Construct
Cape Of Wasps15
Caustic Eruption15 Chord Of Shards15
Circle Of Clarity
Cold Ice Strike
Compassionate Ally15
Conjure Black Pudding <sup>a</sup> ······ <u>16</u>
Contagion, Greater
Control Construct
Control Summoned Creature
Corrosive Consumption16
Corrosive Touch17
Countless Eyes
Create Demiplane (All)
Curse, Major. 17
Curse Of Disgust19
Curse Of Magic Negation 19
Cursed Earth
Cushioning Bands19
Dance Of A Hundred Cuts
Dance Of A Thousand Cuts
Darkvision, Greater19
Daze, Mass

Decompose Corpse	.19
Defensive Shock	
Delay Pain	20
Delusional Pride	
Diagnose Disease	20
Disfiguring Touch <sup>a</sup>	•20
Disguise Other	20
Distracting Cacophony	20
Distressing Tone	20
Divine Pursuit	21
Dread Bolt	21
Eagle Aerie	
Ear-Piercing Screamª	
Echolocation	21
Eldritch Fever	21
Envious Urge	
Epidemic.	
Eruptive Pustules	22
Excruciating Deformation	
Exquisite Accompaniment	
False Life, Greater	
Familiar Melding	
Fickle Winds	
Fleshworm Infestation	23
Forbid Action	
Forbid Action, Greater	
Force Hook Charge	
Force Punchª	_
Forced Quiet	
Frigid Touch	
Frostbite	
Fumbletongue	
Fungal Infestation	
<u>Ghostly Disguise</u>	
Haunting Choir	
Haunting Mists	
Hex Wardª	
Holy Ice	
Holy Shield	
Horn Of Pursuit	
Howling Agony	
Ice Body	
Ice Crystal Teleport	
Icicle Dagger	
Icy Prison	
Icy Prison, Mass	
Imbue With Aura	
Interplanetary Teleport	
Interrogation	
Interrogation, Greater	
Joyful Rapture Ki Arrow	
Ki Leech	
CONTRACTOR OF A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIP	
<u>Ki Shout</u> Know The Enemy	
KHOW THE ENERGY.	-29

eashed Shackles29	
end Judgment29	
end Judgment, Greater29	
ightning Arcª·····29	
oathsome Veil29	-
unar Veil29	
1ad Hallucination	
1ad Monkeys	
Malicious Spite	
Marionette Possession	
Masterwork Transformation31	
Aiserable Pity	
Ionstrous Physique (All)31	8
Aurderous Command	-
ppressive Boredom31	
Pracle's Vessel31	
Drb Of The Void	
Verwhelming Grief	
Verwhelming Presence	
ernicious Poison <sup>a</sup> ······31	
ersuasive Goad	
iercing Shriek	-
lague Carrier	
lague Storm	
lay Instrument	
olar Midnight	
olypurpose Panacea	
ossess Object	<
rediction Of Failure	
rimal Scream	-
rotective Penumbra	
ain Of Frogs	-
aise Animal Companion	
apid Repair	-
ay Of Sickening	
eckless Infatuation	
emove Sickness	
eprobation	1
esonating Word	-
estore Corpse36	
estore Eidolon	5
estore Eidolon, Lesser	1
ide The Lightning37	
ide The Waves	
anctify Corpse	
ands Of Time <sup>a</sup> ·····37	
couring Windsª37	
culpt Simulacrum	
erenity	
hadowbard38	
hadow Step38	
hadow Weapon38	
hard Of Chaos38	
hare Memory	-
ilk To Steel	2

A President and a state	. 1
Simulacrum, Lesser	39
Skinsend	39
Smug Narcissism	39
Snapdragon Fireworks	39
Sonic Thrust	
Soothe Construct	
Spear Of Purity	0.00
Spit Venom	
Steal Voice	
Strangling Hair	
Summon Elder Worm	
Summon Froghemoth	
Summon Minor Ally	
Summon Minor Monster	
Surmount Afflictiona	
Symbol Of Healing	
Symbol Of Mirroring	
Symbol Of Revelation	
Symbol Of Scrying	
Symbol Of Sealing	
Symbol Of Slowing	
Symbol Of Strife	
Symbol Of Vulnerability	
Tar Ball	
Temporary Resurrection	
Touch Of Slime	
Toxic Gift Transmute Blood To Acid	
Unadulterated Loathing	
Unbreakable Construct Undead Anatomy (All)	
Unholy Ice	
Unholy Sword	
Unnatural Lust	
Unprepared Combatant	
Unshakable Chill <sup>a</sup>	
Utter Contempt	
Vengeful Outrage	
Vermin Shape (All)	
Vestment Of The Champion	
Virtuoso Performance	
Vision Of Hell	
Vitriolic Mist	
Vocal Alteration	
Volcanic Storm	
Wall Of Sound	
Wartrain Mount	
Waves Of Ecstasy	
Web Shelter	
Witness.	
Wooden Phalanx	
Word Of Resolve	
Youthful Appearance	48
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	



# Welcome to Ultimate Plug-Ins: Mythic Magic!

THIS SUPPLEMENT IS JUST ONE PART OF A LARGER RESOURCE FOR EVERY gamemaster who would like to try out the new mythic rules but might feel a bit intimidated by the huge amount of conversion work. The *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures* hardback contains a wealth of new rules, but in one book there cannot be room for everything, especially when it comes to monsters. That book contains some of the iconic monsters of myth and legend and RPG history, transformed into a mythic rules format. The published monsters provide a broad selection of new mythic spells, but as the game has grown there are so many more spells yet to discover! Mythic spells are not just about bigger numbers, but about more interesting, exciting, and cinematic special effects that go along with them that really give your characters (or your villains) a sense of power to shake the foundations of the world! Or at least the walls of the local dungeon. That is where the *Mythic Magic* series from Legendary Games comes in.

The *Mythic Magic* series contains updated mythic spells for every class, presented in cogent and coherent modular units perfect for each class to have everything they need to make their mythic spell selections count. Spells that help them to set themselves apart from the ordinary humdrum casting they've been used to, and to experiment with the new possibilities that mythic spells have to offer. Every issue brings you mythic versions of entire spell lists by class, with mythic versions of all the spells you already know and love that didn't make their way into *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*. All brought to you by expert designers who know the mythic spell rules like no one else because they are the same authors that created most of the mythic spells in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

# **SPECIAL ELECTRONIC FEATURES**

We've hyperlinked the electronic version of this product internally from the Table of Contents and externally with links to the <u>Pathfinder Reference Document</u>, the official online compendium of game rules, as well as the <u>d2opfsrd.com</u>. If it is in the core rulebook, we generally didn't link to it unless the rule is an obscure one. The point is not to supersede the game books, but rather to help support you, the player, in accessing the rules, especially those from newer books or that you may not have memorized.

# **ABOUT LEGENDARY GAMES**

6

Legendary Games is an all-star team of authors and designers, founded by Clark Peterson of Necromancer Games, Inc. Legendary Games uses a cooperative, team-based approach to bring you, the Paizo fan, the best expansion material for your game. We are gamers and storytellers first, and we believe that passion shows in our products. So check us out, and Make Your Game Legendary!

Also visit us on Facebook and follow us on <u>Twitter</u>, and check out our website at <u>www.makeyourgamelegendary.com</u>.

# WHAT YOU WILL FIND INSIDE MYTHIC MAGIC: ULTIMATE SPELLS II

THIS PRODUCT IS THE THIRD VOLUME OF YOUR ENCYCLOPEDIA OF MYTHIC SPELLS. The *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures* hardback introduces an entire new category of mythic magic, bringing a handful of new spells and many updates of cherished favorites from the *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Core Rulebook* as well as some of the more recent hardback rulebooks. There are certainly plenty of spells to get your mythic campaign started, but it doesn't take long to realize that there are literally hundreds of spells left untouched, including over 200 in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic*. That diversity of options that we love so much about the game was missing, and that is what Legendary Games is bringing back in the *Mythic Magic* series. The product before you completes the mythic rules for every spell in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic*. All of them. If it's not already in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*, it's right here, from acidic spray to youthful appearance and all spells in between, including class spell lists for the magus, spells lists for every oracle mystery, sorcerer bloodline, and witch patron in the book.

Whether you're an arcane or a divine caster, *Mythic Magic: Ultimate Spells II* contains mythic spells of every level and every kind, from orisons and cantrips to the mightiest 9th-level magics. You will find combat spells like *aura of doom, overwhelming presence*, and *transmute blood* to acid right alongside defensive magic like *delay pain* and *vestment of the champion*, spells to aid your allies like *lend judgment* and *restore eidolon*, and utility spells like *ice crystal teleport* and *polypurpose panacea*. They are all here, every one, developed with flair and function in mind as only Legendary Games can bring it, by the same designers that wrote most of the mythic spells in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures* in the first place.

The *Mythic Magic* series from Legendary Games sets aside the rich story and background that is our trademark, because it is focused on absolute crunch, and there it absolutely lives up our highest standards of innovative layout, beautiful aesthetics, and excellence in design that is second to none. We hope you enjoy using it as much as we enjoyed making it. Game on!

- Jason Nelson

# ULTIMATE SPELLS

For all of the spell lists that follow, spells in boldface are those described in this product, and those spells have a page number to denote where they appear. Those in standard typeface are described in Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures. Spells that appear in a different product in the Mythic Magic line are underlined. Spells marked with a superscript <sup>A</sup> are spells that can be further augmented to produce greater effects by the expenditure of additional mythic power. The non-mythic version of all spells in this product originally appeared in Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic. In addition, spell descriptions can be found online in the Pathfinder Reference Document and at d2opfsrd.com.

# SPELL LISTS BY CLASS

This product provides mythic versions of the spells from *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic*, but you will still need to refer to the standard versions of those spells to resolve their effects, as adjusted by the mythic rules presented in this product. As such, it is assumed you have access to that rulebook and the spell lists contained in **Chapter 5: Spells** of that book, and those lists are not repeated here. For ease of electronic reference, you may also link to the **Spells by Class** page as well as the **Base Class** page for the <u>magus</u> in the online Pathfinder Reference Document for its full class spell list.

SPELL LIST (ALPHABETICAL) acidic spray<sup>A</sup> acute senses

age resistance

8

age resistance, greater age resistance, lesser agonize allegro animate dead, lesser anthropomorphic animal anticipate peril arboreal hammer<sup>▲</sup> arcana theft archon's aura arrow of law ash storm astral projection, lesser<sup>A</sup> atavism atavism, mass aura of doom badger's ferocity battlemind link bestow grace of the champion<sup>A</sup> blade of bright victory blade of dark triumph blessing of the mole blood crow strike blood mist blood transcription boiling blood<sup>A</sup> bungle burrow<sup>A</sup> burst of nettles cackling skull call construct<sup>A</sup> cape of wasps caustic eruption<sup>A</sup> chord of shards circle of clarity cold ice strike compassionate ally conjure black pudding<sup>A</sup> contagion, greater control construct<sup>A</sup> control summoned creature corrosive consumption<sup>A</sup>

corrosive touch<sup>A</sup> countless eyes create demiplane create demiplane, greater create demiplane, lesser curse, major<sup>A</sup> curse of disgust curse of magic negation cursed earth cushioning bands dance of a hundred cuts dance of a thousand cuts<sup>A</sup> darkvision, greater daze, mass<sup>A</sup> decompose corpse defensive shock<sup>A</sup> delay pain delusional pride diagnose disease disfiguring touch<sup>A</sup> disguise other distracting cacophony<sup>A</sup> distressing tone divine pursuit dread bolt eagle aerie<sup>A</sup> ear-piercing scream<sup>A</sup> echolocation eldritch fever<sup>A</sup> envious urge epidemic eruptive pustules<sup>A</sup> excruciating deformation<sup>A</sup> exquisite accompaniment false life, greater familiar melding<sup>A</sup> fickle winds A fleshworm infestation forbid action forbid action, greater force hook charge force punch<sup>A</sup>

forced quiet frigid touch frostbite fumbletongue fungal infestation ghostly disguise<sup>A</sup> haunting choir haunting mists<sup>A</sup> hex ward<sup>A</sup> holy ice holy shield horn of pursuit howling agony ice body<sup>A</sup> ice crystal teleport<sup>A</sup> icicle dagger<sup>A</sup> icy prison icy prison, mass imbue with aura interplanetary teleport<sup>A</sup> interrogation interrogation, greater joyful rapture ki arrow ki leech ki shout know the enemy leashed shackles lend judgment<sup>A</sup> lend judgment, greater<sup>A</sup> lightning arc<sup>A</sup> loathsome veil lunar veil<sup>A</sup> mad hallucination<sup>A</sup> mad monkeys malfunction malicious spite<sup>A</sup> marionette possession masterwork transformation miserable pity monstrous physique (all)<sup>A</sup> murderous command<sup>A</sup>

9

oppressive boredom<sup>A</sup> oracle's vessel orb of the void<sup>A</sup> overwhelming grief<sup>A</sup> overwhelming presence pernicious poison<sup>A</sup> persuasive goad piercing shriek<sup>A</sup> plague carrier plague storm<sup>A</sup> play instrument polar midnight polypurpose panacea possess object prediction of failure primal scream protective penumbra rain of frogs<sup>A</sup> raise animal companion<sup>A</sup> rapid repair ray of sickening reckless infatuation<sup>A</sup> remove sickness<sup>A</sup> reprobation<sup>A</sup> resonating word restore corpse restore eidolon<sup>A</sup> restore eidolon, lesser<sup>A</sup> ride the lightning<sup>A</sup> ride the waves<sup>A</sup> sanctify corpse<sup>A</sup> sands of time<sup>A</sup> scouring winds<sup>A</sup> sculpt simulacrum<sup>A</sup> serenity shadowbard shadow step<sup>A</sup> shadow weapon shard of chaos share memory silk to steel simulacrum, lesser

skinsend smug narcissism<sup>A</sup> snapdragon fireworks sonic thrust soothe construct spear of purity spit venom<sup>A</sup> steal voice<sup>A</sup> strangling hair summon elder worm<sup>A</sup> summon froghemoth<sup>A</sup> summon minor ally<sup>A</sup> summon minor monster<sup>A</sup> surmount affliction<sup>A</sup> symbol of healing symbol of mirroring symbol of revelation symbol of scrying<sup>A</sup> symbol of sealing symbol of slowing symbol of strife symbol of vulnerability tar ball temporary resurrection<sup>A</sup> terrible remorse touch of slime toxic gift<sup>A</sup> transmute blood to acid<sup>A</sup> unadulterated loathing<sup>A</sup> unbreakable construct<sup>A</sup> undead anatomy (all)<sup>A</sup> unholy ice unholy sword unnatural lust<sup>A</sup> unprepared combatant unshakable chill<sup>A</sup> utter contempt vengeful outrage vermin shape (all)<sup>A</sup> vestment of the champion<sup>A</sup> virtuoso performance<sup>A</sup> vision of hell

vitriolic mist<sup>A</sup> vocal alteration<sup>A</sup> volcanic storm<sup>A</sup> wall of sound<sup>A</sup> wartrain mount<sup>A</sup> waves of ecstasy<sup>A</sup> web shelter witness wooden phalanx word of resolve youthful appearance

#### ACIDIC SPRAY

This spell deals 1d10 points of damage per caster level (maximum 15d10), and creatures failing their saving throw are sickened until the end of their next turn and take an additional 1d10 points of damage per two caster levels (maximum 7d10) one round later (Fortitude negates). Creatures that fail this second saving throw continue to be sickened and continue taking this damage each subsequent round that they fail their save, up to a maximum number of rounds equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1).

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you send a flood of liquid acid that pushes against creatures and objects like a hydraulic torrent.

#### **ACUTE SENSES**

You may choose to increase the bonus on Perception checks provided by this spell by an amount equal to twice your mythic tier. Alternatively, you may grant the normal bonus as well as one of the following senses: darkvision 30 feet, low-light vision, scent.

# AGE RESISTANCE (ALL)

You may extend the duration of this effect to one day times your mythic tier. Alternatively, you may change the range of this spell to touch.



# AGONIZE

This spell has half the normal effect on a successful save rather than being negated. Its saving throw becomes Fortitude: partial.

#### ALLEGRO

You gain the benefits of *mythic haste*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*, as long as you are maintaining a bardic performance. If you dismiss the spell to reroll a Reflex save or Dexterity-based skill check, you add one-half your mythic tier to the roll. In addition, the action required to cast this spell is the same type of action as is required for you to begin your bardic performance. Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of your mythic power, you gain the effects of augmented *mythic haste* as long as you are maintaining a bardic performance. If you dismiss the spell to reroll a Reflex save or Dexteritybased skill check, you add your mythic tier to the roll.

# ANIMATE DEAD, LESSER

This spell functions as *mythic animate dead*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*, but creates only a single Small or Medium skeleton or zombie.

# ANTHROPOMORPHIC ANIMAL

You increase the duration of the spell to one day per mythic tier you possess. In addition, you can grant the target animal one of the following feats as a bonus feat for every 2 mythic tiers you possess (minimum 1): Exotic Weapon Proficiency, Heavy Armor Proficiency, Light Armor Proficiency, Martial Weapon Proficiency, Medium Armor Proficiency, Shield Proficiency, Simple Weapon Proficiency, Weapon Focus. You must have proficiency (or Weapon Focus) in the type of armor, shield, or weapon that you grant to the target.

# ANTICIPATE PERIL

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# ARBOREAL HAMMER<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# ARCANA THEFT

A successful caster level check to dispel allows you to dispel and transfer two effects instead of just one, and you may choose to dispel effects that would not be beneficial to you without transferring them to yourself.

# ARCHON'S AURA

Mythic creatures affected by your *archon's aura* must succeed on a Will save after successfully attacking you in order to end the spell's effects on them, rather than automatically ending the effect with a successful attack. Opponents may attempt a new save after each successful attack they make against you. Non-mythic creatures are affected by your *archon's aura* until they successfully hit you with a number of attacks equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1) whereupon they are entitled to begin making saving throws to end the spell's effects as described for a mythic creature.

# ARROW OF LAW

This spell affects the target as *mythic order's wrath*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

#### ASH STORM

Creatures beginning their turn within a *mythic ash storm* must succeed on a DC 15 Reflex save or catch on fire from burning cinders. In addition, creatures that need to breathe must hold their breath or take 1d4 points of nonlethal damage each round they begin their turn inside the *mythic ash storm*. As long as this nonlethal damage persists, they are sickened.

# ASTRAL PROJECTION, LESSER

You can take an additional number of companions equal to your mythic tier, and the caster level check to dispel your *mythic lesser astral projection* is increased by an amount equal to your mythic tier. If a mythic creature using *mythic lesser astral projection* has its astral body killed, it may expend one use of its mythic power to gain only one permanent negative level rather than two.

Augmented (6th): If you expend one additional use of mythic power per creature, you can surround each of the physical bodies of creatures left behind within an individual *wall* of force that lasts as long as the *mythic lesser astral projection* does unless it is destroyed.

## ATAVISM

The target gains a +3 bonus on all rolls, including damage rolls, a +3 bonus to special ability DCs, a +6 bonus to AC and CMD, and +3 hit points per HD. In addition, you can affect plants and vermin with Intelligence 2 or less with this spell as if they were animals.

#### ATAVISM, MASS

This spell functions as *mythic atavism*, but you can affect an additional number of targets equal to one-half your mythic tier, and the targets need not be within 30 feet of each other.

# AURA OF DOOM

Creatures that become shaken within your *aura of doom* and remain within it must make an additional save each round at the beginning of their turn or become frightened. If already frightened, they become panicked on a failed save.

# **BADGER'S FEROCITY**

You add your mythic tier to your level to determine how many weapons you can affect. If you choose to target only natural weapons, you can affect a number of them equal to onehalf your caster level plus your mythic tier. You can maintain concentration on this spell by spending a move action each round. The spell ends immediately if you begin casting another spell, activate a magic item, or use a spell-like or supernatural ability.

# BESTOW GRACE OF THE CHAMPION

The target can lay on hands a number of times equal to one-half your mythic tier, and it can use this ability to heal others as a standard action or itself as a swift action. It may also choose to expend two uses of its lay on hands ability to channel positive energy as a paladin of 1/2 your caster level as a standard action. The target also grants a +4 morale bonus on saves against fear to all allies within 10 feet.

Augmented (7th): If you expend two uses of your mythic power, the target's lay on hands, channel energy, and smite evil abilities function as a paladin whose level equals your caster level and the target becomes immune to charm effects and grants a +4 morale bonus on saves against charm effects to all allies within 10 feet.

#### **BLADE OF BRIGHT VICTORY**

Your weapon is treated as good and lawful for the purpose of overcoming damage reduction. In addition, your weapon is immune to rusting (if metallic) or rot (if wooden) and gains a bonus equal to your mythic tier on saving throws against any other effect. You add one-half your mythic tier to the sacred bonus this spell provides to your CMD against disarm and sunder maneuvers directed at your weapon.

#### BLADE OF DARK TRIUMPH

Your weapon is treated as chaotic and evil for the purpose of overcoming damage reduction. In addition, your weapon is immune to rusting (if metallic) or rot (if wooden) and gains a bonus equal to your mythic tier on saving throws against any other effect. You add one-half your mythic tier to the profane bonus this spell provides to your CMD against disarm and sunder maneuvers directed at your weapon.

# **BLESSING OF THE MOLE**

The target can hold its breath twice as long as normal and gains a burrow speed of 5 feet through soft earth, sand, and soil, though it cannot burrow through solid rock. The target also gains tremorsense with a radius of 5 feet plus 5 feet per 2 mythic tiers.

# **BLOOD CROW STRIKE**

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

# **BLOOD MIST**

Creatures within the *mythic blood mist* are coated with the algae created by the spell regardless of whether they save. This reveals the location of invisible creatures and results in a -20 penalty on Stealth checks. In addition, creatures that fail their saves take 1 additional point of Wisdom damage each round they remain within the *mythic blood mist*. When their Wisdom damage equals or exceeds their Wisdom score, they do not fall unconscious as normal, instead gaining the effects of *rage* for as long as the *mythic blood mist* spell is in effect.

# **BLOOD TRANSCRIPTION**

You can attempt to learn more than one spell from the creature whose blood you consume, as long as the total number of spells does not exceed your mythic tier and the total level of the spells you learn does not exceed your caster level plus your mythic tier.

# BOILING BLOOD<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# BUNGLE

You increase the maximum Hit Dice you can affect with this spell to 10 plus your mythic tier. In addition, if the target is a non-mythic creature, it must succeed on a Will save after taking the penalty from this spell or it takes a -10 penalty on its next attack roll or check requiring a d20 roll that occurs within the spell's duration.

# BURROWA

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# **BURST OF NETTLES**

The stinging nettles created by this spell cling to targets for a number of rounds equal to your mythic tier, regardless of whether they save. A creature covered in these clinging leaves takes a -20 penalty on Stealth checks and is dazzled as its vision is obscured. An invisible creature covered in leaves has its location clearly revealed and is treated as having concealment rather than total concealment when it is attacked. These clinging leaves are destroyed if the target takes fire damage to the target equal to your mythic tier, and a creature covered in nettles may attempt a Reflex save against the spell's save DC to clear them off if it or an ally spends a full-round action removing them.

#### CACKLING SKULL

Creatures that hear the *cackling skull* become frightened for 1d4 rounds on a failed save and are shaken for 1 round even on a successful save.

# CALL CONSTRUCT

You can cast this spell on a construct without first casting *arcane mark*, and if you no longer

CHORD OF SHARDS

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# **CIRCLE OF CLARITY**

All non-mythic figments and glamers are suppressed within the *mythic circle of clarity*, and you add a bonus equal to one-half your mythic tier to the saving throw bonus granted by the spell to disbelieve mythic illusions. You also add your mythic tier on the Perception checks to notice creatures or objects in the area.

# **COLD ICE STRIKE**

This spell deals 1d10 points of damage per caster level (maximum 15d10), and half of this damage is cold damage, while the other half is piercing and slashing damage. Creatures that fail their Reflex save also take bleed damage equal to your mythic tier from the razor-sharp slivers of ice.

#### **COMPASSIONATE ALLY**

When the target helps its injured ally, it is compelled to continue healing that creature's wounds as long as it has healing resources available (including magic items) or until the creature is restored to full health. After fully healing a creature, if there is another injured ally within sight the target is compelled to move to assist that ally to the exclusion of other activities. The target can defend itself, but it cannot attack or take actions other than tending to injured allies. If no allies are injured, the target may act normally. A target with no healing resources other than the Heal skill must make a DC 15 Heal check on an injured ally each round until it succeeds. If its ally is

control the construct you learn its precise location, as if you had cast *discern location*. The spell cannot be dispelled by any non-mythic means unless the dispelling creature's caster level equals or exceeds yours.

The cost of the material component for this spell is reduced by 100 gp times your mythic tier. In addition, you can call the bonded construct to you even while you or the construct is subject to a non-mythic effect that blocks teleportation or summoning, such as *antimagic field, dimensional anchor, dimensional lock,* or *forbiddance,* with a successful caster level check against a DC of 15 plus the caster level of the effect, and adding your mythic tier as a bonus to the check.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of your mythic power, you can cast this spell even if the material component is not in your possession (though it still shatters when you cast the spell).

#### CAPE OF WASPS

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

#### **CAUSTIC ERUPTION**

This spell deals 1d10 points of damage per caster level (maximum 20d10), and creatures failing their saving throw are sickened until the end of their next turn and take an additional 1d10 points of damage per two caster levels (maximum 10d10) one round later (Reflex negates). Creatures that fail this second saving throw continue to be sickened and continue taking this damage each subsequent round that they fail their save, up to a maximum number of rounds equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1).

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of your mythic power, the area increases to a 50-foot-radius spread, and any acid damage dealt by this spell bypasses acid resistance and acid immunity. still injured, the target will stay adjacent to the ally and use the aid another action to boost the target's AC until its wounds are fully healed or the spell ends.

# CONJURE BLACK PUDDING<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# CONTAGION, GREATER

This spell functions as *mythic contagion*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*, but the disease cannot be cured without the use of magic. The DC to remove the disease with magic is equal to the save DC + 5 + your mythic tier. Spells such as *heal* that automatically cure disease remove the *mythic greater contagion* only if the caster succeeds at a caster level check as if using *remove disease. Mythic heal* automatically removes this disease.

# **CONTROL CONSTRUCT**

You add your mythic tier on Spellcraft checks to gain or maintain control of the target construct. If successful, you can give a nonmythic construct a simple command, which it will follow for a number of rounds equal to your mythic tier after you stop concentrating. If the target is a mythic construct, add its mythic rank to the DC of this check, and you must check each round to maintain control. If the construct's creator or master is a mythic creature and is present and trying to control the construct, she adds her mythic rank or tier to her Spellcraft check to oppose your attempts to control the construct.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can implant a *suggestion* (as the spell, but affecting only the target construct) in the construct that it will continue to obey even after you cease concentrating. If the construct's creator is present, it can attempt a Spellcraft check with a DC equal to 10 + your ranks in Spellcraft + your mythic tier + your ability modifier in your primary spellcasting ability score. The construct's creator can attempt this check each round to end the *suggestion* effect and wrest back control of the construct.

Augmented (6th): If you expend a number of uses of mythic power equal to one-half the target construct's CR, the duration of this spell changes to permanent and you no longer need to make Spellcraft rolls to control the construct, as it regards you as its creator.

## CONTROL SUMMONED CREATURE-

If you succeed on a Spellcraft check to identify a summoning spell as it is being cast, you can cast this spell as an immediate action. You gain a bonus equal to your mythic tier on this check. The original caster of the spell designates the location where the summoned creature will appear, but if the target fails its save you control its actions once it arrives.

# **CORROSIVE CONSUMPTION**

You can affect objects as well as creatures, and the damage from this spell is not halved against metal objects. If the object is currently worn or wielded by a creature, you can affect the object by making a successful disarm, steal, or sunder combat maneuver, with a bonus on your combat maneuver check equal to your mythic tier.

Against both objects and creatures, this spell deals 1 point of damage per caster level (maximum 15) plus damage equal to your mythic tier on the first round. On the second round it deals 1d6 points of damage per caster level (maximum 15d6), and on the third and final round it deals 1d8 points of damage per caster level (maximum 15d8). A creature becomes sickened as long as the acid clings to it, and for a number of rounds thereafter equal to onehalf your mythic tier. The acid cannot be rinsed off with water save by total immersion or being targeted with a water effect that affects an area at least as large as the target, such as *aqueous orb* or *hydraulic torrent*. A creature attempting to scrape off the

your mythic tier + your Intelligence modifier). Augmented (5th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, this spell affects both a creature and one object it carries. If you succeed on a touch attack against the creature, roll randomly to determine which of its items is affected, using the Items Affected by Magical Attacks table in the Chapter 9 of the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Core Rulebook. If you instead make a successful disarm, steal, or sunder combat maneuver against the target, you may choose which item is affected along with the creature. Total immersion in water can rinse off the creature and the item simultaneously, but scraping the acid off must be done separately for the item and the creature.

acid must succeed on a Reflex save (DC 15 +

# **CORROSIVE TOUCH**

This spell's damage increases to 1d6 points of acid damage per caster level (maximum 5d6). If the target is wearing metal armor or wielding a metal weapon or shield, you may attempt a free sunder combat maneuver against the target; if the maneuver is successful, the item takes the same amount of acid damage as the target. The damage dealt by this spell is not halved against metal objects.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of mythic power and the free sunder combat maneuver is successful, the acid ignores the hardness of the item (unless it is a legendary item or artifact) and bypasses any acid resistance or immunity possessed by the target creature. If the acid damage you deal exceeds the item's hit points, any leftover damage is dealt to the target creature.

#### **COUNTLESS EYES**

The target gains a bonus equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum +1) on saving throws made to disbelieve visual illusions. In addition, the target can expend one hour of the spell's duration to negate the dazzled condition or all of the spell's remaining duration to negate the blinded condition. If the target would be affected by a pattern, it can ignore that pattern by expending a number of hours of the spell's duration equal to the level of the pattern.

# CREATE DEMIPLANE (ALL)

You may choose to increase the duration of your demiplane to one week per level, or you may increase its size to a number of 20-foot cubes (rather than 10-foot cubes) as appropriate to the spell you cast. Only a creatures whose mythic rank or tier exceeds yours can dispel your demiplane.

#### CURSE, MAJOR

You add your mythic tier to the DC to remove the curse. In addition, any creature attempting to remove the curse from the target is affected by the same curse as the target (Will negates). This save is required after each attempt to remove the *mythic major curse*, regardless of whether or not the removal succeeds.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of mythic power, the *mythic major curse* is hereditary, passing on to all of the target's descendants for a number of generations equal to your mythic tier. The curse typically manifests in adolescence or adulthood, and each descendant is entitled to a single Will save to avoid acquiring the curse. If they save, the curse's heredity nevertheless continues, but any of their descendants gain a +2 circumstance bonus on saving throws to avoid the curse. If a descendant has multiple ancestors that have resisted the curse, these bonuses stack.



# **CURSE OF DISGUST**

You can designate a number of different triggers for your *curse of disgust* equal to your mythic tier. If the target is within 30 feet of two or more triggers simultaneously, the penalties for the sickened condition increase by 1 for each trigger after the first (maximum penalty -5).

# CURSE OF MAGIC NEGATION

The target takes a penalty equal to your mythic tier on caster level checks to overcome the spell resistance of its <u>negated spellblight</u> (as described in the Mastering Magic chapter of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic*). You also add your mythic tier to the DC of caster level checks made to dispel or remove the curse.

# CURSED EARTH

You increase the area affected by this spell to a radius of 1 mile times your mythic tier, and you also add your mythic tier to the DC of caster level checks made to dispel or remove the curse.

#### **CUSHIONING BANDS**

The target gains DR 5/slashing or piercing, and the *cushioning bands* absorb all damage from constriction, falling, being buried, and similar crushing effects, up to a maximum of 15 points of damage per caster level (maximum 150).

#### DANCE OF A HUNDRED CUTS

You add your mythic tier to your caster level to determine the bonus you gain from this spell (maximum +10), and the bonus is doubled when making Acrobatics checks.

# DANCE OF A THOUSAND CUTS

This spell functions as *mythic dance of a hundred cuts,* but you also gain the benefits of

*mythic haste,* as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you gain the effects of augmented *mythic haste*.

# DARKVISION, GREATER

The range of the target's darkvision becomes equal to its line of sight, and the target can see normally through up to 20 feet plus 10 feet per mythic tier of magical darkness.

## DAZE, MASS

You add one-half your mythic tier to the Hit Die limit of creatures you can affect, and targets may be up to 30 feet plus 5 feet times your mythic tier apart.

Augmented (5th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, this spell functions as *daze monster* rather than *daze*, in addition to the above modifications.

# **DECOMPOSE CORPSE**

You can affect the corpse of a creature of any size. If cast on a non-skeletal corporeal undead creature, you inflict a temporary -2 penalty to its Strength or Dexterity score (caster's choice) for 1 minute, in addition to the spell's normal effect.

#### **DEFENSIVE SHOCK**

When a creature strikes you with a metal melee weapon (not including hafted weapons like axes, hammers, and spears), you can attempt a free combat maneuver to disarm the attacker. This maneuver does not require an action and does not provoke attacks of opportunity. Each time the spell discharges, it loses only one die of damage, rather than being reduced by half.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the electricity damage from this spell bypasses electricity resistance or immunity. In addition, even if you fail to overcome an attacker's spell resistance, you may attempt a new caster level check to overcome its spell resistance each time thereafter that it hits you. Once you succeed, the spell affects your attacker fully from that point on.

# **DELAY PAIN**

The target gains a bonus equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum +1) on saving throws against effects with the pain descriptor. In addition, any nonlethal damage taken by the target is reduced by 5 hit points, plus 5 hit points per mythic tier after 1st.

## **DELUSIONAL PRIDE**

The target's *mythic delusional pride* renders it incapable of fighting defensively, using Combat Expertise or the total defense action, or using Acrobatics to avoid attacks of opportunity. Enemies gain a +2 circumstance bonus on attack rolls when the target uses the charge action or when making attacks of opportunity against the target due to her reckless lack of caution. The target also disdains the assistance of others, and cannot give or receive any benefit from flanking, teamwork feats, or the aid another action. The target gains a +2 morale bonus on saves against fear.

# DIAGNOSE DISEASE

You add one-half your mythic tier (minimum +1) on Heal checks to treat a disease and on caster level checks to *remove disease* from a creature on whom you have used this spell. If you are exposed to a disease within 1 minute of using this spell, you gain a +2 circumstance bonus on your saving throw to avoid contracting that disease.

# DISFIGURING TOUCH<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# **DISGUISE OTHER**

Add your mythic tier to your bonus on Disguise skill checks made by the target. In addition, as a full-round action the target may change its appearance to create a new disguise. Each time the target changes its appearance, this bonus on Disguise skill checks is reduced by 2, to a minimum of +2.

# DISTRACTING CACOPHONY

You add your mythic tier to the DC of concentration checks and Perception checks based on hearing within the spell's area. The white noise created by the spell reduces the save DC of language-dependent and sonic effects within the area by an amount equal to one-half your mythic tier. You are unaffected by your own *mythic distracting cacophony*.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the radius of the effect is increased by 10 feet per 4 mythic tiers you possess, and language-dependent and sonic effects are negated within the area as if it was an area of magical silence.

## **DISTRESSING TONE**

The vibrations induced by this spell make it difficult for creatures to maintain their grasp on held objects. All targets take a penalty equal to your mythic tier to their CMD against disarm attempts, and once per round as a swift action you can attempt a combat maneuver check to disarm one target, using your caster level in place of your base attack bonus and your primary spellcasting ability modifier in place of your Strength modifier. In addition, a creature attempting to draw a weapon (including drawing a piece of ammunition to use in a ranged weapon), retrieve a stored item, or pick up an item from the ground must succeed on a Reflex save against the spell's DC or the action fails. If the action is normally a free action, the target can attempt a number of free actions equal to its Dexterity bonus (minimum 1). The

target can automatically succeed at the action by increasing the type of action required by one step, as follows: free, swift, move, standard, full-round. If the action already requires a full-round action to complete, the target can automatically succeed by taking one round to perform the action, in which case the action is completed just before its next turn.

#### **DIVINE PURSUIT**

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

#### DREAD BOLT

This spell affects the target as *mythic unholy blight*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

#### EAGLE AERIE

You add your mythic tier to your caster level to determine the number of eagles you summon. In addition, the summoned eagles gain the <u>agile mythic simple template</u>, as described in Chapter 6 of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can polymorph a number of willing creatures equal to one-half your mythic tier into giant eagles, as if you had cast *beast shape IV* on each target. Each of these creatures gains a +30-foot enhancement bonus to its fly speed during any round in which they take only move actions or use the run action.

#### EAR-PIERCING SCREAM<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

#### **ECHOLOCATION**

You may cast this spell with a range of touch. If you use the spell on yourself, your *echolocation* can penetrate non-mythic silence effects, though its clarity is muted and it provides only blindsense rather than blindsight in such areas.

# ELDRITCH FEVER

You add your mythic tier to the DC of caster level checks to remove the eldritch ague spellblight with *remove curse* or *remove disease*, and it is considered a supernatural disease that cannot be cured without the use of magic. Spells such as *heal* that automatically cure disease remove the *mythic eldritch fever* only if the caster succeeds at a caster level check as if using *remove disease*. *Mythic heal* automatically removes this spellblight. You also add your mythic tier to the DC of concentration checks made to cast spells while shaking from the ague.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power and the target fails its saving throw, each time it casts a spell it begins shaking for a number of rounds equal to one-half your mythic tier. In addition, the condition cannot be removed by non-mythic effects unless they are used by a creature whose mythic rank or tier equals or exceeds yours.

#### **ENVIOUS URGE**

You may choose to specify a number of objects or creatures up to your mythic tier as the object(s) of the targets' envy, rather than having the targets simply be envious of the nearest creature. The targets of the spell gain a bonus equal to your mythic tier on combat maneuver checks made to disarm, grapple, or steal against the creature they envy. However, their single-minded and obsessive focus on the object they are trying to take causes them to become flat-footed against all creatures other than the one holding the object of their envy as long as they are within 30 feet of that object or creature.

# **EPIDEMIC**

The save DC for creatures to contract the disease from close contact from the target is the spell DC, not the disease's normal DC, and you add one-half your mythic tier to the DC to remove the disease. Spells such as *heal* that automatically cure disease remove the *mythic epidemic* only if the caster succeeds at a caster level check as if using *remove disease*; any other effects of such spells are unaltered. *Mythic heal* automatically cures a target that has contracted a *mythic epidemic*. The original target of the disease remains a carrier even after recovering from the disease for an amount of time equal to the disease's frequency times your mythic tier.

# **ERUPTIVE PUSTULES**

The acid damage dealt by this spell bypasses acid resistance or immunity unless the target is also immune to disease. The caustic pus created by this spell clings to an attacker for a number of rounds equal to your mythic tier regardless of whether it saves, dealing 1 point of acid damage per round to the target and to any other creature that touches it other than you, including melee touch attacks, natural weapons, and unarmed strikes. Any creature damaged by this spell contracts <u>filth fever</u> unless it succeeds at a Fortitude save against the spell's save DC. If a creature contracts filth fever, all subsequent saves use the normal DC for the disease.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, creatures failing their save are sickened for a number of rounds equal to one-half your mythic tier. This is in addition to the normal 1 round of being sickened or nauseated. Non-mythic creatures striking you with a melee touch attack, natural weapon, or unarmed strike are sickened (or nauseated on a critical hit) for 1 round even if they succeed on their saving throw. If a creature contracts filth fever from the *mythic eruptive pustules,* all saving throws against the disease use the spell's save DC.

# **EXCRUCIATING DEFORMATION**

Each round the target fails its saving throw, it is staggered with pain until the beginning of its next turn.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of mythic power, this spell deals lethal damage, and it causes Dexterity and Constitution drain rather than damage on a failed saving throw.

## **EXQUISITE ACCOMPANIMENT**

You can cast this spell as part of the same action you use to begin a bardic performance. You add your mythic tier to the result of any Perform check you make.

# FALSE LIFE, GREATER

The temporary hit points gained increase to 4d10 + 2 per caster level (maximum +40). As an immediate action, you can dismiss the remaining duration of the spell to prevent 1 point of Strength, Dexterity, or Constitution damage per 5 temporary hit points remaining from the spell. This takes effect after the attack affects you and the damage is rolled but before you take the damage. This spell is particularly effective at absorbing damage caused by death effects. Each temporary hit point provided by this spell absorbs 2 points of damage from death effects.

#### FAMILIAR MELDING

The range of this spell is increased to 1 mile per mythic tier. In addition, while melded with your familiar you can expend one use of mythic power to ignore the verbal, somatic, or material component of a non-mythic spell; you may spend up to three uses of mythic power to ignore all three. If you wish to cast a mythic spell, you must expend two uses of mythic power for each component you ignore.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the range of the spell is unlimited, as long as you remain on the same plane.

Augmented (8th): If you expend three uses of mythic power, the range of the spell is unlimited, including travel to other planes.

# FICKLE WINDS

You add your mythic tier to your caster level to determine how many Medium creatures you can affect, and the targets of this spell need not be within 30 feet of each other. This spell functions normally within the area of non-mythic wind or weather spells, regardless of their level, unless they were created by a mythic creature whose tier or rank exceeds yours.

Augmented (5th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the mystic winds are so intense that they can deflect magical rays and missiles as *entropic shield*.

# FLESHWORM INFESTATION

A creature failing its save against the *mythic fleshworm infestation* takes Dexterity drain rather than damage and is staggered and sickened for 1 round. A successful save deals 1 point of Dexterity damage and sickens the target for 1 round. Non-mythic *protection from evil* does not stop a *mythic fleshworm infestation* unless the caster is a mythic creature whose rank or tier exceeds yours.

# FORBID ACTION

You can target up to one creature per level, each of which must be forbidden to perform the same action. Creatures that successfully save are staggered for 1 round (this is a mindaffecting effect).

#### FORBID ACTION, GREATER

Creatures that succeed on their saving throw against this spell, whether when initially cast or in a subsequent round, become staggered and remain staggered until they successfully save a second time in a subsequent round.

#### FORCE HOOK CHARGE

You add your mythic tier to the force damage dealt by this spell. You also gain a deflection bonus to AC equal to one-half your mythic tier on attacks of opportunity that your movement provokes from the target of your force hook charge (though not against other attackers). When you are pulled adjacent to your target, you may choose for the hook to disappear as normal or to persist for a number of rounds equal to your mythic tier. While it persists, you and the target are tethered by a cord of force that passes harmlessly through other creatures and objects. This cord can be any length you desire, up to the spell's maximum range. The target cannot move beyond this distance from you unless it succeeds an on opposed Strength check. You gain a bonus on this check equal to your mythic tier. Even if the target succeeds, you can allow the creature to pull you along with it as it moves. Your movement while being pulled in this fashion does not provoke attacks of opportunity. If you are not adjacent to the target at the beginning of your turn, you can expend one round of the spell's remaining duration as a swift action to pull yourself adjacent to the target as if you had cast force hook charge again in terms of movement; this does not deal damage to the target or entitle you to make an attack as part of pulling yourself toward the target.

#### FORCE PUNCH<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# FORCED QUIET

All sounds made by the target become muffled and inaudible to creatures unless they succeed on a Perception check with a DC equal to 10 + your caster level + your mythic tier. If the target uses a language-dependent effect, sound-based bardic performance, or even attempts to give verbal instructions, creatures must succeed at this check to hear the target and be affected. They cannot voluntarily fail this check. In addition to the above, you add one-half your mythic tier on the bonus this spell grants the target on saves against sonic effects and Stealth checks and reduce the save DC of sonic effects the target creates by the same amount.

# FRIGID TOUCH

The damage increases to 4d10 points of cold damage, and the target is slowed (as the *slow* spell) for 1 round and takes 1 point of Dexterity damage. On a critical hit, the target is slowed for 1 minute and takes 1 point of Dexterity drain and 1 point of Dexterity damage.

# FROSTBITE

You add your mythic tier to the nonlethal damage dealt by this spell, and the target's fatigue persists for a number of minutes equal to your mythic tier even after all nonlethal damage dealt by this spell has been healed.

# FUMBLETONGUE

The duration of this spell is increased by a number of rounds equal to your mythic tier, and the chance of spell failure for spells with verbal components or failure to activate an item requiring a command word is increased to 25%, increasing by 5% per two mythic tiers you possess.

# **FUNGAL INFESTATION**

The duration is increased by a number of days equal to your mythic tier, and it is considered a supernatural disease and cannot be cured without the aid of magic. As long as the *mythic fungal infestation* persists, the target takes a penalty equal to one-half your mythic tier against disease, poison, and the exceptional or supernatural abilities or effects of fungal creatures or hazards. Spells such as *heal* that automatically cure diseases remove the *mythic fungal infestation* only if the caster succeeds at a caster level check as if using *remove disease*; any other effects of such spells are unaltered. *Mythic heal* automatically cures a target that has contracted a *mythic fungal infestation*.

# **GHOSTLY DISGUISE**

You may choose for your body (or any part of it) to shed light as bright as a candle, and while in your *mythic ghostly disguise* you can create minor sensory effects to enhance your disguise, as if using *prestidigitation*.

Mindless undead creatures are automatically fooled by your illusion and ignore you as if you were an insubstantial ghost, while intelligent undead can make a Will save to disbelieve the illusion if they interact with you; however, the save DC is increased by an amount equal to your mythic tier (for non-mythic undead) or one-half your mythic tier (for mythic undead). If you channel positive energy, turn or command undead, or touch an undead creature, all undead immediately see through your illusion.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of your mythic power, you gain an <u>unnatural aura</u> for as long as the spell lasts. You also gain a circumstance bonus equal to one-half your mythic tier on Intimidate checks against living creatures, and the save DC of any fear effect you create is increased by 1. These bonuses do not apply against creatures that see through your illusion.

# HAUNTING CHOIR

Creatures within 30 feet of the haunting choir take a -3 penalty on attack rolls, skill checks, and ability checks; these penalties increase to -4 for creatures that occupy the same space as the haunting choir. Creatures failing their save against the haunting choir's agonizing moans treat the phantom singers similar to a hostile creature. The haunting choir's 10-foot space is treated as a hostile creature for the purpose of flanking adjacent creatures, and any creature within its space is automatically considered flanked. Each round, you can use a move action to direct the *haunting choir* to move up to 30 feet in any direction, including vertically. It can move through creatures and solid obstacles as long as they do not block line of effect to you.

# HAUNTING MISTS

The range increases to 50 feet, and the cloud's radius and height both increase to 50 feet, and creatures within the mist take a penalty equal to one-half your mythic tier on saves against fear effects other than this spell.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you may increase the spell's range and radius to 500 feet and its height to 100 feet. Alternatively, you may retain the 50-foot range, radius, and height while increasing the Wisdom damage dealt by the spell by

an amount equal to one-half your mythic tier. Non-mythic creatures take 1d2 points of Wisdom damage even on a successful save.

# HEX WARD<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# HOLY ICE

You can duplicate the effect of a *mythic wall* of ice, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*, save that creatures vulnerable to holy water take damage equal to your mythic tier every time they touch or attack the wall with a melee attack or 1d6 plus your mythic tier per round for extended contact with the wall, such as climbing or walking on it. Creatures stepping through the frigid air left behind when the wall is broken take damage as *mythic wall of ice*, but half the damage is cold and half is damage from holy water;

creatures not damaged by holy water take only the cold damage.

> If you instead use the spell to hurl ice javelins, you add one-half your mythic tier as a sacred bonus on your attack rolls, and you may add cold damage or holy water damage (your choice) equal to onehalf your mythic tier to the damage dealt by each javelin.

-25

# HOLY SHIELD

As long as you do not change the target, you can maintain the protection of your *holy shield* each round as a free action rather than a swift action. If you have feats that apply to your shield, such has Shield Focus or Missile Shield, the target gains the benefit of those feats. If your shield has special properties, such as *energy resistance* or *arrow deflection*, the target gains the benefit of those abilities as well, though the target cannot make shield bash attacks or gain total cover from a tower shield you are using.

#### HORN OF PURSUIT

Your horn can be heard up to 5 miles away per mythic tier you possess. You may unleash a number of peals from the *horn of pursuit* equal to 3 plus your mythic tier over the course of a duration of one hour per caster level or until discharged. Allies moving toward your signal with a *horn of pursuit* gain a +2 circumstance bonus on saving throws against exhaustion and fatigue and on Constitution checks to avoid fatigue from a <u>forced march</u> or <u>running</u>.

# HOWLING AGONY

Creatures failing their saving throw take a -3 penalty on AC, attack rolls, melee damage rolls, and Reflex saves, and must succeed at a concentration check with a DC equal to the spell's save DC plus your mythic tier. Creatures that elect to scream as loudly as possible to alleviate their pain must succeed at a Fortitude save each time they do so or become hoarse due to vocal strain for 1d6 hours for each failed save. This functions as the <u>caster croak spellblight</u> (as described in Chapter 2 of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic*), though it also affects non-spellcasters.

# ICE BODY

You do not gain vulnerability to fire while using this spell, and your unarmed strike deals damage as a club plus cold damage equal to your mythic tier. This cold damage bypasses the cold immunity or resistance of non-mythic creatures or creatures whose mythic rank or tier is lower than yours, except for creatures with the cold subtype. When you are burrowing through ice and snow you gain tremorsense 60 feet, and you add your mythic tier on caster level checks made to burrow through magical ice and snow. Your movement is not impeded by snow or ice and you can climb icy surfaces as if using *spider climb*, though you can fall through snow or ice that cannot support your weight. In conditions of severe cold (below o degrees Fahrenheit), you gain fast healing 1. This increases to fast healing 2 in extreme cold (below -20 degrees Fahrenheit); see Cold Dangers in the Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Core Rulebook.

Augmented (5th): If you expend two uses of mythic power while you are in contact with an icy surface larger than your size, you can grow in size and power as if you had cast *righteous might*, although you do not gain DR/good or DR/evil.

#### ICE CRYSTAL TELEPORT

The hit points of the ice crystal are increased to 5 hit points per inch of thickness. You may choose to reduce the number of rounds the target remains frozen in ice before teleportation occurs by an amount equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum o rounds). Alternatively, you may choose for the target to remain frozen in ice for a number of rounds equal to your mythic tier after teleportation has been completed.

Augmented (2nd): You can target one additional creature per two mythic tiers by expending one use of mythic tier for each target after the first.

# ICICLE DAGGER

The range of this spell increases to touch, and you can give the weapon to another creature to wield, though every round that it is wielded by a creature other than you counts as 1 minute of the spell's duration. The *mythic icicle dagger* does not melt if out of your hand for more than 1 round. If you wield the *mythic icicle dagger* yourself, you add one-half your mythic tier to the cold damage it deals on a successful hit. This damage is multiplied on a critical hit.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of mythic power, you may create a masterwork version of any light slashing or piercing melee weapon in which you are proficient, rather than just a dagger. If you create a dagger with this spell, it retains its full duration when wielded by other creatures.

#### ICY PRISON

The hit points of a *mythic icy prison* are increased to 5 hit points per inch of thickness, and you add your mythic tier to the Strength DC to break the ice. You add your mythic tier to the cold damage a creature takes each round it is helpless or entangled in the ice, and the cold damage dealt by this spell bypasses the cold immunity or resistance of non-mythic creatures or creatures whose mythic rank or tier is lower than yours, except for creatures with the cold subtype.

# ICY PRISON, MASS

This spell functions as *mythic icy prison*, but you can affect an additional number of targets equal to one-half your mythic tier, and the targets need not be within 30 feet of each other.

# IMBUE WITH AURA

You can target an additional number of creatures equal to your mythic tier. While the targets are imbued with your alignment aura, they perceive you as credible and trustworthy and you gain a +2 circumstance bonus on Charisma checks and Charisma-based skill checks, and the DC of charm, compulsion, and language-dependent effects you use against the targets is increased by 1.

-27

# **INTERPLANETARY TELEPORT**

You may teleport willing creatures within 5 feet times your mythic tier, without needing to touch them.

Augmented: You can provide the benefit of *darkvision, life bubble, resist energy,* or *tongues* for a number of hours equal to your mythic tier by expending one use of your mythic power for each creature you include in your *interplanetary teleport*. You may choose to include some targets and exclude others from the companion spell. If the target is mythic, it can maintain the effects of the companion spell upon itself for a number of hours equal to its mythic rank or tier by expending one use of its mythic power, and it can do so repeatedly to continue extending the effect. If the effect lapses or is dispelled, it ends and cannot be extended in this fashion.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you may teleport one additional willing creature of any size per 3 mythic tiers.

## INTERROGATION

You may ask one additional question for every two mythic tiers you possess, and the target's penalty on Bluff checks to convince you when it is lying increases by an amount equal to your mythic tier. When a target refuses to answer a question, you may choose to deal lethal or nonlethal damage. You may expend one minute of the spell's remaining duration to switch any remaining questions you are allowed to a new target, who is entitled to a saving throw. If the new target's saving throw is successful, the spell ends and any remaining questions are lost.

# INTERROGATION, GREATER

You may ask one additional question for every two mythic tiers you possess, and the target's penalty on Bluff checks to convince you when it is lying increases by an amount equal to twice your mythic tier. When a target refuses to answer a question, you may choose to deal lethal or nonlethal damage, and you may choose either to add your mythic tier to the damage dealt or to strike fear into the target, which must succeed at a Will save against the spell's save DC or become shaken (or have its fear condition worsened by one step, to frightened, panicked, or cowering). A cowering creature answers questions truthfully to the best of its ability; however, there is a 50% chance that the creature's panicked blubbering makes its answer unintelligible. This chance is

reduced by 10% for every two mythic tiers you possess. You may expend one minute of the spell's remaining duration to switch any remaining

28

questions you are allowed to a new target, who is entitled to a saving throw. If the new target's saving throw is successful, that minute of the spell's duration is wasted and that creature cannot be successfully interrogated with that casting of the spell; however, you may resume questioning the original target or may expend an additional minute of the spell's duration to attempt to question a new target.

# JOYFUL RAPTURE

You immediately end the confused, dazed, staggered, and stunned conditions, and you cure 1d4 points of Intelligence, Wisdom, and Charisma damage and 1 point of Intelligence, Wisdom, and Charisma drain to all allies in the area. All allies gain a +1 morale bonus on attack rolls and saving throws against mindaffecting effects. Any existing morale bonuses they possess (except morale bonuses to ability scores) are increased by 1.

# KI ARROW

You add your mythic tier to the damage dealt by your *ki arrow.* In addition, you can deliver your Stunning Fist (or equivalent ability) through your *ki arrow.* 

# KI LEECH

You can cast this spell as a swift action after confirming a critical hit in melee. In addition, if you confirm a critical hit against a living enemy that has a ki pool (even if you do not reduce the target to o or fewer hit points), you can steal 1 point from the target's ki pool and transfer the ki to your own ki pool, or to the ki pool of an adjacent ally.

# KI SHOUT

The damage is increased to 1d8 points of sonic damage per level (maximum 20d8), and you can also attempt a combat maneuver check against the target using your caster level plus your primary spellcasting ability modifier plus your mythic tier. If your combat maneuver succeeds, your target is pushed 10 feet in a direction of your choice and knocked prone. If an obstacle prevents this movement, the target and the obstacle each take 1d6 points of damage, and the opponent is knocked prone in the space adjacent to the obstacle.

# KNOW THE ENEMY

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# LEASHED SHACKLES

Your shackles of force reinforce the surface to which they are attached, adding your mythic tier to the object's hardness and adding 5 hit points to the surface times your mythic tier. If the original target of the spell saves, it cannot be entrapped by that casting of *leashed shackles*; however, you can spend one minute of the spell's duration to attempt to entrap a different creature within 30 feet of the object or location where your *leashed shackles* are anchored. You add your mythic tier to the DC of caster level checks made to dispel.

# LEND JUDGMENT

You can cast this spell as part of the action you use to begin your judgment. In addition, your ally gains the benefit of the judgment you share for the full duration of the spell, even if you cannot use the judgment or switch to a different active judgment. Your ally must remain in combat to gain the benefits of the judgment; its benefits are suppressed and the spell's duration continues to elapse if the target is frightened, panicked, paralyzed, stunned, unconscious, or otherwise prevented from participating in combat.

If you switch to a different judgment and you touch the target of this spell as a swift or move action, you may switch the target's active judgment to match your new active judgment. If the target is unwilling, it retains the previous active judgment.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of your mythic power, you can share your judgment with a number of allies equal to one-half your mythic tier.

## LEND JUDGMENT, GREATER

This functions as *mythic lend judgment*, but your ally gains the benefit of all of your active judgments.

# LIGHTNING ARC<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

## LOATHSOME VEIL

You add your mythic tier to the number of Hit Dice of creatures you affect, and you may choose the order in which the creatures are affected. In addition, you can add a loathsome array of disturbing and discordant sounds or scents to your *mythic loathsome veil*, allowing it to affect even sightless creatures or creatures closing or averting their eyes, though creatures that do not see the *mythic loathsome veil* gain a +4 bonus on their saving throw.

#### LUNAR VEIL

The area is increased to a 600-foot-radius emanation, and lycanthropes within the area become shaken on a failed Will save, remaining shaken as long as they remain within the area.

Augmented (5th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the area is increased to a radius 1 mile in diameter times your mythic tier, up to a height of 1200 feet.

# MAD HALLUCINATION

30

This spell can affect a creature of any type, not only humanoids. The target's movement is also halved on a failed save.

Augmented (3rd): The target takes a -4 penalty on Will saving throws, caster level checks, and Intelligence and Wisdom-based skill checks, and during combat the target must make a new Will save each round or become slowed (as the *slow* spell) until the beginning of his next turn.

# MAD MONKEYS

The *mythic mad monkeys* gain the <u>agile</u> <u>mythic simple template</u>, as described in Chapter 6 of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*. In addition, you add one-half your mythic tier to the save DC against the *mythic mad monkeys'* distraction attack and to their CMD, as well as their combat maneuver bonus for combat maneuvers made to disarm and steal.

# MALFUNCTION

This functions as *mythic confusion*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*, except it only affects constructs, and instead of babbling incoherently the construct takes no actions on its turn and takes a -4 penalty on its Armor Class until its next turn.

## MALICIOUS SPITE

You can specify a number of specific acts of malice equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1) that you wish the target to perform against the individual you designate. This functions like *suggestion* but the compulsion remains as long as the *malicious spite* spell persists. The target must perform at least one of the suggested acts each day until all are completed or take 2 points of Wisdom damage each day.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can target a number of creatures equal to one-half your mythic tier, imbuing all targets with *malicious spite* against the same designated individual.

# MARIONETTE POSSESSION

You can possess a willing creature even if it is protected by a non-mythic effect that would normally block possession, including a nonmythic *antimagic field*. In addition, you can select a number of the target's feats or exceptional or supernatural abilities equal to your mythic tier, allowing you to use those feats or abilities while inhabiting the target's body.

#### MASTERWORK TRANSFORMATION

You can affect a number of weapons, shields, tools, skill kits, or suits of armor equal to your mythic tier, though you must pay the reagent cost for each item you convert into a masterwork item. An item with multiple masterwork options, such as a spiked shield, armor spikes, or double weapon, counts as one item for each option you choose to make masterwork.

#### **MISERABLE PITY**

Creatures that succeed on their Will save and successfully attack or harm the target must succeed on a second save at the end of their turn or take a -2 penalty on attack and damage rolls, saving throws, skill checks, and ability checks for a number of rounds equal to your mythic tier due to remorse and shame at attacking such a weak and helpless creature. Creatures that fail their saves do not attack the target but begin to ignore that target in combat. They do not threaten the target or provide flanking against the target, and if the target attacks them they are considered flat-footed against the first attack.

# MONSTROUS PHYSIQUE (ALL) A

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

## MURDEROUS COMMAND<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

## **OPPRESSIVE BOREDOM**

If the target fails its initial save, the ennui it experiences can be broken only by the expiration of the spell or by succeeding on its Will save in two consecutive rounds thereafter.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can target a number of creatures equal to one-half your mythic tier.

# ORACLE'S VESSEL

The target treats the class skills for your oracle mystery as class skills and also gains one revelation you possess. This revelation functions as if the target were an oracle whose level was equal to your mythic tier +1, and the revelation must be one that is available to oracles of that level.

# ORB OF THE VOID<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

#### **OVERWHELMING GRIEF**

If the target fails its initial save, the grief and sorrow it experiences can be broken only by the expiration of the spell or by succeeding on two consecutive Will saves thereafter.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can target a number of creatures equal to one-half your mythic tier.

#### **OVERWHELMING PRESENCE**

You add one-half your mythic tier to the number of creatures you may affect, and the targets need not be within 30 feet of one another. In addition, if the target fails its initial save, its awestruck adulation for you can be broken only by the expiration of the spell or by succeeding on two consecutive Will saves thereafter.

# PERNICIOUS POISON<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 



# PERSUASIVE GOAD

You add one-half your mythic tier (minimum +1) to both the nonlethal damage dealt by this spell and on Intimidate checks you make against the target for 1 minute.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can target a number of creatures equal to one-half your mythic tier.

#### PIERCING SHRIEK

The target is deafened as well as staggered. You can target a creature within a non-mythic *silence* effect if you succeed on a caster level check against a DC of 11 + the caster level of the *silence* effect. You add your mythic tier as a bonus on this check.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the save for this spell changes to Fortitude: partial and the target takes nonlethal sonic damage equal to your mythic tier regardless of whether it saves against the spell. If the target fails its save, it takes additional nonlethal sonic damage equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1 point) each round at the end of its turn.

# PLAGUE CARRIER

You add one-half your mythic tier to the save DC of the target's filth fever, including both the initial saving throw as well as saving throws to recover from the disease. This also applies to the DC of Heal checks to treat the disease or caster level checks to remove the disease.

# PLAGUE STORM

The ability damage dealt by the *mythic plague storm's* disease on a failed save is increased by 1, and as long as the disease persists the target is fatigued, and non-mythic creatures within the cloud must roll twice on saving throws, using the worse result. As a move action, you can move the cloud 10 feet in any direction.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the spell bypasses the disease immunity of living creatures.

#### PLAY INSTRUMENT

You can play the instrument of your choice as if you had a number of ranks in the appropriate Perform skill equal to your mythic tier. Alternatively, you can cast this spell with a range of touch, affecting a number of targets equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1). If you are trained in the Perform skill for the instrument you are playing, each target is treated as if it had a number of ranks in that Perform skill equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1).

# POLAR MIDNIGHT

Illumination in the area is dropped by three steps, to supernatural darkness, and all creatures in the area take 5d8 points of cold damage and 1d6 points of Dexterity drain. A successful save reduces the Dexterity drain to 1 point of Dexterity damage but does not reduce cold damage. Any creature in the area that does not move on its turn is encased in an *icy prison* but cannot breathe.

#### **POLYPURPOSE PANACEA**

You can cast this spell with a range of touch, allowing another creature to benefit from your *polypurpose panacea*, though it must be consumed within a number of hours equal to your mythic tier or its effect is wasted. If you use the *polypurpose panacea* yourself, you may choose to gain two effects or you may choose a single effect but gain twice the normal benefit while halving any penalties.

# POSSESS OBJECT

You can possess an object even if it is protected by a non-mythic effect that would normally block possession, including a non-mythic *antimagic field*. When you animate an object while you possess it, you may grant the object a +4 enhancement bonus to its Strength or Dexterity score (or +2 to each), and the object gains 1-1/2 times the normal number of construction points. You can speak through the possessed object, but you cannot cast spells or trigger magical items with your voice.

# PREDICTION OF FAILURE

If the target fails its save, it is cursed as if you had cast *major curse*. If the target is a spellcaster, you can instead inflict one major or two minor <u>spellblights</u> (as described in Chapter 2 of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic*).

# PRIMAL SCREAM

You can cast this spell as an immediate action when you would be affected by a harmful enchantment or paralysis effect, or when subjected to a curse or other magical effect that specifically affects your hearing or your ability to speak, dispelling or removing such effects as break enchantment. This does not remove general conditions such as petrification, polymorph, or death that prevent you from speaking. Your *primal scream* can dispel a magical silence effect if you are its target or in its area as well as effects that cause you to become dazed, deafened, nauseated, or stunned as if they were enchantment effects. If these effects are not spells or spell-like abilities, the DC to remove them is equal to the effect's save DC or, if the effect allowed no save, a DC of 11 plus the Hit Dice of the creature that created the effect. If you cast mythic primal scream as a standard action, add your mythic tier to the caster level check to remove the effect.

# **PROTECTIVE PENUMBRA**

You can increase the duration to 1 hour per level, or you may affect a number of creatures equal to your mythic tier for the standard duration.

# RAIN OF FROGS

The frog swarm gains the <u>agile mythic simple template</u>, as described in Chapter 6 of *Path-finder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*. In addition, you add one-half your mythic tier to the save DC against the frog swarm's distraction attack and to the save DC of its poison.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the frogs' poison bypasses the poison immunity of living creatures. In addition, their thunderous croaking deafens creatures for as long as they remain within the swarm and for 1 round thereafter.

# **RAISE ANIMAL COMPANION**

You can raise a creature that has been dead a number of weeks equal to your mythic tier.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of your mythic power, you can cast this spell with no costly material component. If you use a 1,000 gp diamond, the target returns to life with no permanent negative levels.

#### RAPID REPAIR

The targeted construct gains fast healing equal to 5 plus one-half your mythic tier. This does not stack with any fast healing the construct already has. Fast healing has no effect on a construct that has been brought to o hit points or destroyed; however, if you cast this spell on a construct that has been reduced to o hit points since the end of your last turn, you restore it to functionality with a number of hit points equal to your mythic tier, and its fast healing begins functioning on its next turn.

# **RAY OF SICKENING**

Non-mythic creatures are not allowed a saving throw to resist becoming sickened. If the target is already sickened, it takes 1d4 points of nonlethal damage per caster level (maximum 5d4) and is nauseated for 1 round; a successful saving throw halves the nonlethal damage and negates the nauseated condition.

#### **RECKLESS INFATUATION**

You can specify a number of specific acts of besotted affection equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1) that you wish the target to perform to show its love for the individual you designate. This functions like *suggestion* but the compulsion remains as long as the *reckless*  *infatuation* spell persists. If following such a *suggestion* would take it more than 30 feet from the target, it does not become staggered as long as it continues following the *suggestion* or is returning to its beloved after completing the suggested act. If any of these acts would place the target in obvious physical danger, it can attempt a second save to break the spell's effect.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can target a number of creatures equal to one-half your mythic tier, imbuing all targets with *reckless infatuation* toward the same designated individual.

#### **REMOVE SICKNESS**

The duration of this spell is increased by a number of minutes equal to your mythic tier. In addition, the next time the target takes ability damage from a disease within the next 24 hours, that damage is reduced by 1 for a mythic disease or by one-half your mythic tier (minimum 1) for a non-mythic disease. If the disease damages multiple ability scores, this reduction applies to all of them. If an effect that causes the sickened or nauseated condition does not allow a saving throw, the target has a 10% chance times your mythic tier to ignore the effect.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can target a number of creatures equal to one-half your mythic tier. Alternatively, you can affect a single target, increasing the duration to 10 minutes per caster level.

#### REPROBATION

The target is affected by permanent *crushing despair* as long as the mark of *mythic reprobation* persists. Add your mythic tier to the DC of caster level checks made to remove the mark with *atonement* or *remove curse*. In addition, if the caster level check to remove the *mythic* 

while a creature failing by 5 or more is affected by *mythic reprobation*.

# **RESONATING WORD**

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# **RESTORE CORPSE**

You can affect a creature of up to Huge size with this spell. It immediately reverses the effects of a *decompose corpse* spell. If you cast this spell on a damaged non-skeletal undead creature, it restores a number of hit points equal to 2d10 plus your caster level (maximum 10).

# **RESTORE EIDOLON**

You can cast this spell without a costly material component. Alternatively, if you use 100 gp worth of diamond dust as the material component you remove all temporary ability penalties, ability damage, and ability drain from the target eidolon, as well as removing exhaustion and fatigue and dispelling all temporary negative levels. If you use 1,000 gp worth of diamond dust, you remove a number of permanent negative levels equal to one-half your mythic tier from the eidolon. This spell cannot be used to remove negative levels from an eidolon more than once within a one-week period.

Augmented: If you spend two uses of mythic power, you can cast this spell with a casting time of 1 round.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can use this spell to remove permanent negative levels even if this spell has been used to remove one or more negative levels previously in the same one-week period.

*reprobation* fails by 5 or more, the caster of the *atonement* or *remove curse* spell acquires a *mark of justice* that is triggered if they try to remove the *mythic reprobation* from the same creature ever again. If the caster level check fails by 10 or more, the caster of the *atonement* or *remove curse* is affected by *reprobation* as well.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of mythic power, any creature failing the caster level check to remove the *mythic reprobation* acquires a *mark of justice*, as described above,
# **RESTORE EIDOLON, LESSER**

You may remove 2d4 points of ability damage from one ability score or 1d4 points of ability damage from two ability scores. In addition, you can remove the fatigued or exhausted condition from the target eidolon.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of your mythic power, you can cast this spell as a standard action.

#### **RIDE THE LIGHTNING**

The damage dealt increases to 10d8 points of electricity damage, and creatures damaged by your lightning are automatically dazzled for 1 round regardless of whether they save. When traveling in lightning form, you can move up to 150 feet, plus 30 feet per 3 mythic tiers after 1st. If you reduce the distance you travel by half, you can make one turn of up to 90 degrees at any point during your movement.

Augmented: If you expend one additional use of your mythic power, you can make a turn of up to 90 degrees without reducing the overall length of your movement.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the damage dealt increases to 10d10 points of electricity damage; this damage bypasses electricity resistance and immunity.

#### **RIDE THE WAVES**

The target gains a bonus equal to your mythic tier to its CMD against water-based effects that duplicate combat maneuvers, such as *hydraulic torrent*, as well as against combat maneuvers used by creatures with the water subtype. The target's attacks and movement are not impeded by water, as if using *freedom of movement*, though the target does not gain the other effects of that spell, such as immunity to grappling, paralysis, etc. If the target is swimming at the surface of the water rather than underwater, it gains an additional move action each round and its swim speed is increased to 60 feet. If the target already has a swim speed, it is increased by 60 feet when the creature is swimming on the surface and by 30 feet underwater.

-37

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the target gains a swim speed of 100 feet on the surface or 50 feet underwater, or its existing swim speed is increased by the same amount.

#### SANCTIFY CORPSE

You may increase the duration to a number of days equal to your mythic tier if casting this spell on a single corpse, or you may affect a number of corpses equal to your mythic tier. You must touch all corpses to be affected within 1 minute of casting the spell.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can cast this spell as an immediate action when an adjacent creature is slain by an undead creature or when an adjacent corpse is targeted with an effect that would turn it into an undead creature. Alternatively, you can cast this spell on yourself when you are slain by an undead creature; this does not require an action, though you must have the material component and/or divine focus on your person and have the spell prepared at the time of your death.

# SANDS OF TIME<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

### SCOURING WINDS<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# SCULPT SIMULACRUM

Add your mythic tier on Disguise checks made to alter the appearance of the target *simulacrum*. If you wish to disguise the *simulacrum* as a specific creature and you a small piece of its body, such as flesh, hair, or a fingernail, you add twice your mythic tier on Disguise checks to duplicate that creature's appearance.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can increase or decrease the size of the target *simulacrum* by one category. This functions as a permanent *enlarge person* or *reduce person* effect, regardless of the creature's type.

#### SERENITY

You suppress confusion, despair, fear, insanity, rage, and emotion effects, as well as all morale bonuses, in creatures that fail their saves. Creatures that attempt to harm another creature while affected take 3d8 points of nonlethal damage and become sickened until the end of their next turn.

#### **SHADOWBARD**

Add your mythic tier to the DC of caster level checks made to dispel the *mythic shadowbard*. You can alter the performance used by your *mythic shadowbard* once per round as a free action rather than a move action. If you know spells that are triggered by ending a bardic performance, such as *saving finale*, as a move action you can direct the *mythic shadowbard* to cast that spell, ending its bardic performance until the end of your next turn. A spell cast in this way does not provoke attacks of opportunity but uses one of your spell slots and otherwise functions as if you had cast it.

# SHADOW STEP

You can cast this spell as a swift or move action, and you gain a bonus equal to your mythic tier on Stealth checks made to hide in the shadows when you arrive at your destination.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the duration increases to a number of rounds equal to one-half your mythic tier. You can make one *shadow step* each round.

Augmented (6th): If you expend three uses of mythic power, you can make two *shadow steps* each round, one as a swift action and one as a move action.

#### SHADOW WEAPON

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

#### SHARD OF CHAOS

This spell affects the target as *mythic chaos hammer*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplay-ing Game Mythic Adventures*.

#### SHARE MEMORY

You can share a memory of up to 10 minutes times your mythic tier, or a number of shorter memories (each lasting no longer than 1 minute) equal to your mythic tier. Add your mythic tier on caster level checks to overcome protection against divination and mind-reading, and you can bypass effects that normally grant immunity to divinations and mind-reading with a successful caster level check against a DC of 15 + the caster level of the protective effect.

# SILK TO STEEL

If you attack with the silken scarf, you are treated as having proficiency with the whip. The steel-hard whip deals lethal damage regardless of the armor or natural armor bonus of the target. You gain an enhancement bonus equal to one-half your mythic tier on attack and damage rolls with the whip. If you use the scarf to defend yourself, you add an enhancement bonus equal to one-half your mythic tier to the shield bonus you gain to your Armor Class.

#### SIMULACRUM, LESSER

A *mythic lesser simulacrum* has DR/epic equal to your mythic tier, and it also gains the benefit of permanent *nondetection* against non-mythic divinations. This *nondetection* does not apply against divinations you use. If you make a *lesser simulacrum* of yourself, you have a telepathic link with the simulacrum as long as it is within 10 miles of you per mythic tier and on the same plane.

#### SKINSEND

While animating your skin, your body gains DR/epic equal to your mythic tier. Meanwhile, your animated skin gains immunity to effects that require respiration or metabolism. Your animated skin also gains the <u>frightful presence</u> universal monster ability, affecting creatures whose Hit Dice are less than your caster level within 5 feet plus 5 feet per 2 mythic tiers you possess. Creatures failing their save are panicked only if their Hit Dice are less than one-half your caster level (maximum 4 Hit Dice).

#### SMUG NARCISSISM

The target's self-absorbed rudeness causes a penalty on Diplomacy checks equal to your mythic tier; this stacks with the penalty on skill checks that normally applies. In addition, 39 arget can clea

during any round in which the target can clearly see its reflection in a surface or object within 10 feet, it must make an additional Will save against the spell's DC or be fascinated until the beginning of its next turn. Even if it succeeds on the saving throw, the target takes a -4 penalty on attack rolls and skill checks whenever a reflective surface is within 10 feet.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the duration is increased to a number of hours equal to your mythic tier.

#### **SNAPDRAGON FIREWORKS**

Add one-half your mythic tier to the fire damage dealt by the *snapdragon fireworks*, which explode with a loud bang as well as a burst of light, deafening and dazzling creatures that fail their save for a number of rounds equal to onehalf your mythic tier (minimum 1).

#### SONIC THRUST

You can hurl an additional number of creatures equal to your mythic tier, increasing the total weight you can hurl by 25 pounds times your mythic tier. You may choose to deal sonic damage equal to your caster level plus your mythic tier to creatures or objects that you hurl (Will negates). If you focus your *mythic sonic thrust* on a single creature or object, multiply this weight limit by your mythic tier, and increase this sonic damage to 1d4 points of damage per caster level (maximum 15d4).

### SOOTHE CONSTRUCT

You add your mythic tier to the reduction you cause in its chance of going berserk. If the construct is already berserk and you are its master, you apply this reduction first and then roll d% twice, choosing the better result, to end its berserk state, return it to normal functioning, and reset its berserk chance to o%.

# SPEAR OF PURITY

This spell affects the target as *mythic holy smite*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

### SPIT VENOM

If you hit the target with your *mythic spit venom*, the target is blinded for 1 round and dazzled for a number of rounds equal to your mythic tier. In addition, the statistics for your *mythic spit venom* are as follows: *type* poison (injury); *save* Fortitude DC = spell DC; *frequency* 1/round for 6 rounds + 1 round per 2 mythic tiers; *effect* 1d2 Con damage plus blindness until the poison is cured; *cure* 2 saves.



Alternatively, you may *spit venom* in a 10foot cone-shaped burst or a 20-foot line rather than as a ranged touch attack. Creatures in the area are dazzled for 1 round, and those that fail their saves are blinded for 1 round and poisoned by <u>black adder venom</u>, using the spell's save DC in place of the poison's normal save DC.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, this spell bypasses the poison immunity of living creatures.

# STEAL VOICE

Add your mythic tier to the DC of caster level checks to remove the <u>caster croak spellblight</u> (as described in Chapter 2 of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic*). In addition, the target's spell failure chance for spells with verbal components is increased to 25%, plus 5% per 2 mythic tiers you possess, and the save DC of any spells the target casts with the language-dependent descriptor are reduced by 6 rather than by 4.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you may steal the target's voice completely, leaving it unable to speak at all. You may use this effect on any creature, not just spellcasters, though removing the effect is identical to removing the caster croak spellblight. The target's voice must be stored inside of an object that has some hollow space inside it. As long as you are wearing or wielding that object, you can perfectly imitate the target's voice. If the target is trained in Perform (comedy, oratory, or sing), you are treated as having the same number of ranks in that skill as the target. If you are disguised as the target, you gain a +10 bonus on Bluff and Disguise checks to pretend that you are the target.

# STRANGLING HAIR

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# SUMMON ELDER WORM

The purple worm you summon gains the invincible mythic simple template, as described in Chapter 6 of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures* and the <u>fast swallow</u> universal monster ability. In addition, you add one-half your mythic tier to the save DC against the worm's poison.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the worm's poison bypasses the poison immunity of living creatures. In addition, the worm's attacks ignore non-mythic *freedom of movement* effects.

#### SUMMON FROGHEMOTH

The froghemoth you summon gains the savage mythic simple template, as described in Chapter 6 of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures* and it gains the benefit of a *jump* spell (caster level equals your mythic tier). In addition, you can expend one use of your mythic power to grant it the ability to use the <u>aerial assault</u> champion path ability, using your mythic tier to determine the effect of the ability.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the froghemoth gains the rend (2 tentacles, 1d8+15) universal monster ability. In addition, the froghemoth's attacks ignore non-mythic *freedom of movement* effects.

# SUMMON MINOR ALLY

The creatures you summon are considered mythic creatures and gain one use of mythic power and the surge ability, which they can use to add 1d6 to a single die roll. Your summoned monsters gain no other mythic abilities.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can add the agile, invincible, or savage <u>mythic simple template</u> to creatures you summon with this spell. These templates are described in the Mythic Monster Advancement section of Chapter 6 in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

-41

#### SUMMON MINOR MONSTER

The creatures you summon are considered mythic creatures and gain one use of mythic power and the surge ability, which they can use to add 1d6 to a single die roll. Your summoned monsters gain no other mythic abilities. In addition, you can apply the <u>entropic</u> or <u>resolute</u> simple template in place of the celestial or fiendish template.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can add the agile, invincible, or savage <u>mythic simple template</u> to creatures you summon with this spell. These templates are described in the Mythic Monster Advancement section of Chapter 6 in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*.

#### SURMOUNT AFFLICTION<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

# SYMBOL OF HEALING

The damage healed from living creatures and dealt to undead creatures is increased to 4d8 points + 2 points per caster level (maximum +30). A *mythic symbol of healing* also suppresses fatigue from living creatures as long as they remain within 60 feet of an active symbol. Undead that fail their save are treated as if they were fatigued as long as they remain within 60 feet of an active symbol. Add your mythic tier to the DC to find or disarm a *mythic symbol of healing* and to the DC of the caster level check to remove the symbol with a non-mythic *dispel magic*.

# SYMBOL OF MIRRORING

Destroying a creature's illusory double within 60 feet of an active mythic symbol of mirroring causes a bright flash of light which dazzles the attacker for 1 round (Will negates). In addition, a creature can use an immediate action to replace a destroyed illusory double. This double persists and is in addition to the replacement illusory double that appears on its next turn. A creature cannot have more than two illusory doubles simultaneously. If a creature leaves the area, the images persist until destroyed or until a number of rounds thereafter equal to your caster level plus your mythic tier. Add your mythic tier to the DC to find or disarm a mythic symbol of mirroring and to the DC of the caster level check to remove the symbol with a non-mythic *dispel magic*.

#### SYMBOL OF REVELATION

This symbol is also triggered by illusion (figment) effects, outlining them in *faerie fire* that marks them for what they are. Creatures outlined in *faerie fire* by this symbol are dazzled as long as the *faerie fire* persists. Add your mythic tier to the DC to find or disarm a *mythic symbol of revelation* and to the DC of the caster level check to remove the symbol with a non-mythic *dispel magic*.

#### SYMBOL OF SCRYING

Add your mythic tier to the DC to find or disarm a *mythic symbol of scrying* and to the DC of the caster level check to remove the symbol with a non-mythic *dispel magic*. You can see and hear the target and its surroundings within 15 feet plus 5 feet for every three mythic tiers. Your chance to successfully cast *detect chaos, detect evil, detect good, detect law, detect magic,* and *message* through the scrying sensor is increased by 5% times your mythic tier. In addition, you can penetrate non-mythic protections from divination with a caster level check against a DC of 11 plus the caster level of the protective effect. If the protective spell already allows such a caster level check, you gain a bonus on the check equal to your mythic tier.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of your mythic power, you can attempt to cast other divination spells through the scrying sensor. The companion divination spell's level cannot exceed half your mythic tier, and its chance of successfully being cast through the sensor is determined as for the spells noted above, but is reduced by 10% per level of the divination.

#### SYMBOL OF SEALING

You seal the warded portal with a *mythic wall of force*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*. Add your mythic tier to the DC to find or disarm a *mythic symbol of sealing* and to the DC of the caster level check to remove the symbol with a non-mythic *dispel magic*.

#### SYMBOL OF SLOWING

Creatures failing their save are affected as *mythic slow*, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*. Add your mythic tier to the DC to find or disarm a *mythic symbol of slowing* and to the DC of the caster level check to remove the symbol with a non-mythic *dispel magic*.

# SYMBOL OF STRIFE

Targets gain a morale bonus on attack and damage rolls equal to one-half your mythic tier whn attacking the nearest creature. If no other creatures are visible, an affected creature has a 50% chance to act normally and a 50% chance to attack itself, dealing itself 2d8 points of damage + its Strength modifier. Add your mythic tier to the DC to find or disarm a *mythic symbol of strife* and to the DC of the caster level check to remove the symbol with a non-mythic *dispel magic*.

#### SYMBOL OF VULNERABILITY

Add your mythic tier to the reduction targets take in spell resistance, energy resistance, and damage reduction. The saving throw penalty taken by targets is increased to -6. This vulnerability lasts as long as creatures remain within 60 feet of the *mythic symbol of vulnerability* and for a number of rounds thereafter equal to your caster level plus your mythic tier. Add your mythic tier to the DC to find or disarm a *mythic symbol of vulnerability* and to the DC of the caster level check to remove the symbol with a non-mythic *dispel magic*.

# TAR BALL

The damage dealt increases to 1d6 points of fire damage on a hit and 1d6 points of fire damage each round thereafter for 1d6 rounds. While the *mythic tar ball* clings to a Large or smaller creature, the target is considered entangled (rather than taking a -2 penalty to Dexterity) and must succeed on a DC 15 Reflex save or be anchored to the spot.

#### **TEMPORARY RESURRECTION**

You can restore life to a body that has been dead up to 48 hours plus 12 hours per mythic tier you possess, and the corpse is returned to life for 24 hours plus 12 hours per mythic tier.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the target does not gain a permanent negative level while it is brought back to life by this spell.

# **TERRIBLE REMORSE**

Each round after a failed save the target deals 2d8 points of damage + its Strength modifier to itself, plus 1 point of damage to a random ability score as it seeks to maim and injure itself. On a successful save, the target is staggered and takes a -2 penalty to Armor Class for a number of rounds equal to one-half your mythic tier. However, it is entitled to an additional saving throw each round at the end of its turn to end this effect.

#### **TOUCH OF SLIME**

If the target of your melee touch attack succeeds on its Fortitude save, the *touch of slime* remains on your hand and you can continue making a number of additional attacks with it equal to your mythic tier or until a target fails its saving throw, at which point the slime is transferred and acts as green slime. The Constitution damage dealt by the green slime is increased to 1d4 points per round.

# **TOXIC GIFT**

If the target fails its save against your *toxic gift*, the poison in your body is neutralized.

Augmented: If you are affected by more than one poison, you can transfer additional poisons to the target as part of your *toxic gift* by expending one additional use of mythic power for each poison after the first. The target is allowed a separate saving throw to resist each poison.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you bypass the poison immunity of living creatures.

# TRANSMUTE BLOOD TO ACID

The damage dealt is increased to 1d8 points of acid damage per 2 levels (maximum 12d8) each round, and the sickened condition persists for a number of rounds equal to one-half your mythic tier even after you stop concentrating. Add your mythic tier to your caster level to determine the maximum duration you can concentrate on this spell.

Augmented: Each round you maintain concentration on this spell, you can expend an additional use of your mythic power at the beginning of your turn to switch to a new target. If the new target has spell resistance and you fail to overcome it, the spell ends. You can switch targets multiple times as long as you continue concentrating, up to the maximum duration allowed by the spell.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the damage dealt is increased to 1d10 points of acid damage per 2 levels (maximum 12d10), and you bypass acid resistance or acid immunity, as well as immunity to bleed effects.

#### **UNADULTERATED LOATHING**

The target becomes sickened as well as nauseated when forced to remain within 60 feet of the object of its disgust.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can affect a number of targets equal to one-half your mythic tier, all of whom are filled with loathing for the same creature.

# **UNBREAKABLE** CONSTRUCT

You increase the target's damage reduction (of any kind, not only DR/adamantine) and/ or its hardness by 5 plus one-half your mythic tier.

Augmented: If you expend two uses of your mythic power, the target construct has a 25% chance to ignore critical hits and precision-based damage, as if wearing light fortification armor.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of your mythic power, the target construct has a 50% chance to ignore critical hits and precision-based damage, as if wearing medium fortification armor.

Augmented (6th): If you expend three uses of your mythic power, the target construct becomes immune to critical hits and precisionbased damage.

# **UNDEAD ANATOMY (ALL)**

Each *mythic undead anatomy* spell is a separate spell, meaning you must select each separately as a mythic spell and you must first know the standard version of the spell you select, though you need not know lower-level *undead anatomy* spells to learn their higherlevel versions.

*Mythic undead anatomy* increases any ability score bonuses and reduces any ability score penalties granted by the standard version by 2 and increases the natural armor bonus the spell provides by 1 (granting a +1 bonus if the spell normally grants no bonus). In addition, you may change the range of this spell to touch and target one creature you touch rather than yourself.

The target of this spell can resume its normal form and then shift back into the same assumed form without ending the spell; however, the spell's duration continues to elapse while the target is in its own form. If the target is a mythic creature, it can spend one use of its own mythic power as a full-round action to shift into a different form allowed by the spell.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you increase the ability score bonuses granted by the spell by 4 rather than by 2. In addition, you can cast this spell on a number of creatures you touch equal to your mythic tier.

## UNHOLY ICE

You can duplicate the effect of a mythic wall

of ice, as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*, save that creatures vulnerable to unholy water take damage equal to your mythic tier every time they touch or attack the wall with a melee attack or 1d6 plus your mythic tier per round for extended contact with the wall, such as climbing or walking on it. Creatures stepping through the frigid air left behind when the wall is broken take damage as *mythic wall of ice*, but half the damage is cold and half is damage from unholy water. Creatures not damaged by unholy water take only the cold damage).

If you instead use the spell to hurl ice javelins, you add one-half your mythic tier as a profane bonus on your attack rolls, and you may add cold damage or unholy water damage (your choice) equal to one-half your mythic tier to the damage dealt by each javelin.

#### UNHOLY SWORD

You can cast this spell on a melee weapon or ranged weapon, and that weapon radiates a *mythic magic circle against good,* and creatures within this radius gain spell resistance of 20 plus your mythic tier against good spells and spells cast by good creatures.

If you have the <u>fiendish boon</u> class feature you can enhance the same weapon with this spell and your fiendish boon; the effects stack. If you have a fiendish boon (fiendish servant), you can cast this spell on one of your fiendish servant's natural weapons.

### UNNATURAL LUST

The compulsion to kiss or caress the object of the target's lust lasts a number of rounds equal to one-half your mythic tier, though each round the target gratifies its lust it can attempt a new saving throw at the end of its turn to end the compulsion. If the target begins its turn adjacent to the object of its lust, it has a 50% chance to be compelled to make a combat maneuver check to grapple the target, or pin it if already grappled. The target does not deal lethal damage or use abilities like constrict or swallow whole when grappling under this compulsion.

-45

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can affect a number of targets equal to one-half your mythic tier, all of whom are filled with lust for the same creature.

#### UNPREPARED COMBATANT

The target takes a penalty on initiative checks equal to 4 plus your mythic tier and also takes a -4 penalty on Reflex saves and to Armor Class against attacks of opportunity.

# UNSHAKABLE CHILL<sup>A</sup>

The mythic version of this spell is described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures.* 

#### UTTER CONTEMPT

The target despises and mistrusts all other creatures and regards them as enemies. Effects that affect allies never affect the target; she is treated as an enemy for all effects that specifically affect enemies. She is never considered a willing target and must make saving throws to resist even harmless effects. The target cannot give or receive benefits from teamwork feats, flanking, or the aid another action, and does not allow other creatures to pass through her threatened area or her space without taking attacks of opportunity. The target's casual disregard for the lives of others is terrifying to behold, and when he begins to shed blood and dole out cruelty it is difficult for him to stop. Whenever a creature the target threatens is reduced to o or fewer hit points, it provokes

an attack of opportunity from the target which he is compelled to take if he is able; if he has exhausted his attacks of opportunity, he can make one as an immediate action. If this attack of opportunity hits, or whenever the target reduces a creature below o hit points with an attack of opportunity, critical hit, or death effect, he must make an Intimidate check as a free action to demoralize a random creature within 30 feet. If that creature is demoralized, the target is compelled to attack that creature on its next turn.

#### VENGEFUL OUTRAGE

You gain a bonus equal to your mythic tier on Bluff checks made to convince the target that the creature you designate has harmed her and deserves vengeance. The duration becomes 1 day per mythic tier you possess or until the *geas* to destroy the chosen enemy has been completed. This *geas* can be removed by a non-mythic *limited wish, miracle,* or *wish* only if the caster's level is equal to or higher than your caster level. Non-mythic *remove curse* has no effect. When the target encounters the object of her vengeance, she gains a +8 morale bonus on Strength and Constitution, a +4 morale bonus on Will saves, and immunity to charm and fear effects.

**VERMIN SHAPE (ALL)** 

Each *mythic vermin shape* spell is a separate spell, meaning you must select each separately as a mythic spell and you must first know the standard version of the spell you select, though you need not know lower-level *vermin shape* spells to learn their higher-level versions.

*Mythic vermin shape* increases any ability score bonuses and reduces any ability score penalties granted by the standard version by 2 and increases the natural armor bonus the spell provides by 1 (granting a +1 bonus if the spell normally grants no bonus). The save bonus against mind-affecting effects provided by this spell is doubled.

You may change the range of this spell to touch and target one creature you touch rather than yourself. The target of this spell can resume its normal form and then shift back into the same assumed form without ending the spell; however, the spell's duration continues to elapse while the target is in its own form. If the target is a mythic creature, it can spend one use of its own mythic power as a full-round action to shift into a different form allowed by the spell.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you increase the ability score bonuses granted by the spell by 4 rather than by 2. In addition, you can cast this spell on a number of creatures you touch equal to your mythic tier.

# **VESTMENT OF THE CHAMPION**

This spell functions as *mythic magic vestment,* as described in *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures*, but the target armor or shield functions only for you or a creature on whom you have cast *bestow grace of the champion.* 

Augmented (3rd): As mythic magic vestment.

#### VIRTUOSO PERFORMANCE

While this spell is active, starting or maintaining a second bardic performance costs only 1 round of bardic performance.

Augmented (5th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can start and maintain a third bardic performance, which costs 2 rounds of bardic performance instead of 1. Maintaining all three bardic performances costs a total of 4 rounds of bardic performance per round they are maintained. When the spell ends, two of the performances end (your choice).

# VISION OF HELL

The saving throw changes to Will (partial). Creatures failing their save are shaken and take a -2 penalty on saves against compulsions and fear effects, as well as against spells with the emotion, evil, lawful, or pain descriptors as long as they remain within the area. Creatures succeeding on their saving throw do not become shaken but take a -1 penalty on saving throws against the above-listed effects as long as they remain within the area. These save penalties are increased by 1 for chaotic or good-aligned creatures, and by 2 for chaotic good creatures.

#### VITRIOLIC MIST

The acid damage dealt by the *mythic vitriolic mist* is increased to 1d8 points + 1 point per caster level (maximum +15). You also gain acid immunity.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the damage is increased to 2d6 points + 1 point per caster level (maximum +15), and this damage bypasses acid resistance or acid immunity. In addition, any weapon striking you takes this acid damage as well, bypassing a number of points of hardness equal to your mythic tier. This damage is applied after the weapon strikes you, and the weapon's wielder can avoid damage to its weapon with a successful Reflex save.

# **VOCAL ALTERATION**

You can target a creature of any type. If you change the target's voice to something ridiculous-sounding, the target takes a penalty equal to one-half your mythic tier (minimum -1) on Bluff, Diplomacy, and Intimidate checks, as well as vocal Perform checks.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of

mythic power, the duration is increased to 24 hours.

-47

Augmented (6th): If you expend three uses of mythic power, the duration is increased to permanent and the spell becomes a curse effect that cannot be dispelled.

#### **VOLCANIC STORM**

The damage dealt increases to 4d8 points of bludgeoning damage and 3d6 points of fire damage. The searing magma clings to creatures, dealing 2d6 points of fire damage on the second round of the spell and 1d6 points of fire damage on the third round. The Perception penalty caused by falling ash is equal to 5 plus your mythic tier.

Augmented (6th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, the fire damage from this spell bypasses fire resistance and fire immunity (unless creatures have the fire subtype), and creatures are entangled as long as they are taking fire damage from the *mythic volcanic storm*.

#### WALL OF SOUND

The damage increases to 2d6 points of sonic damage for creatures within 10 feet of an object or creature that touches the wall; touching or passing through deals 2d8 points of sonic damage + 1 point per caster level (maximum +20). The miss chance for ranged weapons other than arrows and bolts that pass through the *mythic wall of sound* is increased to 50%. Giant-thrown boulders, siege engine projectiles, and similar massive ranged weapons passing through the *mythic wall of sound* have a 20% miss chance.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, giant-thrown boulders, siege engine projectiles, and similar massive ranged weapons passing through the *mythic wall of sound* have a 50% miss chance while smaller ranged weapons are automatically deflected. In addition, Medium and smaller creatures cannot pass through the *mythic wall of sound* unless they succeed on a DC 10 Strength check or DC 20 Fly check; this check is made as part of their movement and does not require a separate action.

#### WARTRAIN MOUNT

The target mount gains one of the following additional benefits, chosen by you at the time of casting: +2 enhancement bonus to its Strength, Dexterity, or Constitution; +2 enhancement bonus to natural armor; +10-foot increase to its speed (choose one type of speed if the target has multiple forms of movement); +2 resistance bonus on all saves; temporary hit points equal to your caster level (maximum +10) plus your mythic tier.

Augmented (4th): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can add a number of the above boons equal to one-half your mythic tier to the target animal.

#### WAVES OF ECSTASY

You can cast this spell as a 40-foot coneshaped burst or a 20-foot spherical burst centered on you.

Augmented (3rd): If you expend two uses of mythic power, you can designate a number of targets equal to one-third your mythic tier to be filled with *unnatural lust* for a single creature you designate that is within 10 feet times your mythic tier.

#### WEB SHELTER

The *web shelter* has hardness equal to your mythic tier, and each 5-foot square of webs has hit points equal to 2 plus your mythic tier. You can create a *mythic web shelter* at ground level, but you can also attach it to any surface or structure strong enough to bear its weight, as it sticks to walls, ceilings, trees, and the like. If you create it above ground level you can create a knotted rope hanging down from the doorway. The rope can be pulled in by creatures inside the *mythic web shelter*.

#### WITNESS

You can shift your senses between yourself and the target as a free action rather than a move action. If the target touches another creature while you are using its senses, as a move action you can shift your senses over to that creature.

#### WOODEN PHALANX

The wood golems you create gain the invincible mythic simple template, as described in Chapter 6 of *Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures,* and lose their vulnerability to fire.

#### WORD OF RESOLVE

You can use this spell even if you do not have the aura of courage or aura of resolve class feature. If you do have those class features, you add one-half your mythic tier to the saving throw bonus you grant to the target's reroll of a save against fear or charm, respectively.

#### YOUTHFUL APPEARANCE

You can use this spell to cause the target to take on the appearance and size of a child. This reduces the target's size by one category, with a +1 size bonus on attack rolls and AC, a -2 penalty to the target's Strength, and a -1 penalty to the target's natural armor bonus to AC (if any, minimum o). Unlike reduce person, the target does not gain a bonus to Dexterity.



# ULTIMATE PLUG INS

ULTIMATE PLUG-INS

Cultimate Rulershi

ULTIMATE PLUG-INS

AVAILABLE

**IN PRINT!** 

Dathfinder

BOLEPLAYING GAME COMPATIBLE

#### A FANTASTIC EXPANSION TO THE KINGDOM-BUILDING RULES FOR THE PATHFINDER ROLEPLAYING GAME.

If your characters are building a kingdom, this is a product you cannot miss! Designed as a perfect complement to the newly revised kingdom-building system, Ultimate Rulership contains a dazzling array of new options including new Edicts for royal commissions and endowments, espionage and festivals, and militarism and recruiting new armies. Add nearly 20 new buildings for your cities from Aeries to Tunnels, Hanging Gardens to Crematoria. Guidelines for population and military recruitment, and for integrating settlement attributes, kingdom events, and danger levels; naturally advantageous sites and exotic city locales from cliff dwellings to treetop towns to cities under the seal

#### MASTER THE BATTLEFIELD LIKE NEVER BEFORE!

This rules supplement delves into mass combat with the same verve and creativity as Ultimate Rulership does to the more peaceable aspects of ruling a kingdom. From advanced tactics and strategy to casualties and prisoners of war, Ultimate Battle takes you from ambush to aftermath with new systems for camouflage and scouting, casualties and prisoners of war, tactical initiative and battle zones, and commanders and mercenaries. In addition, it provides you with expansions of existing rules, including new equipment and dozens of new tactics, command boons, and creature and character special abilities help bring almost any army to life, and robust rules for battlefield conditions from terrain and weather to visibility

and the fog of war. This terrific expansion contains what you need to recruit, train, equip, maintain, and unleash your armies on the battlefield like never before, with 14 new tactics including Cavairy Sweep, Pike Square, and Strafing Skirmishers; 24 new command boons like Death

Before Dishonor, Implacable Advance, and Master Recruiter; 21 types of army equipment from firearms to magic shields, chariots to howdahs; and 51 army special abilities, including for armies comprised of PC classes.

# MYTHIC MONSTERS

# MAKE YOUR GAME **LEGENDARY**



BATHFINDER ROLEPLAVINE BAME COMPATIBLE

MONSTERS:

AYTHIC MONSTER MOUNTS

BY JASON NILSON Statistica (

MYTHIC MONSTERS

DOZES

Myrine MONSTERS AOLDS, SLIMES,

AND FUNGI BY 1450N NILSON

STERINGER (C)

INSON NILSON STREET, STREET PLUG

makeyourgamelegendary.com

# YOUR ULTIMATE RESOURCE FOR MYTHIC SPELLS!

G098MY2

Mythic Magic: Ultimate Spells II completes the mythic rules for every spell in Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Ultimate Magic. All of them. If it's not already in Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures, it's right here, from acidic spray to youthful appearance and all spells in between. Whether you're an arcane or a divine caster, Mythic Magic: Ultimate Spells II contains mythic spells of every level and every kind, from orisons and cantrips to the mightiest 9th-level magics. You will find combat spells like aura of doom, overwhelming presence, and transmute blood to acid right alongside defensive magic like delay pain and vestment of the champion, spells to aid your allies like lend judgment and restore eidolon, and utility spells like ice crystal teleport and polypurpose panacea. They are all here, every one, developed with flair and function in mind as only Legendary Games can bring it, by the same designers that wrote most of the mythic spells in Pathfinder Roleplaying Game Mythic Adventures in the first place.



**MYTHIC PLUG-INS**